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We at Ellies endeavour to:
Put a human face on our operations and continually enhance 

confidence in our products and services.

Provide value to customers through providing useful products, 
engineered to exceptional standards.

Be socially responsible and remain mindful
 of all stakeholders’ interests.
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Annual Report 2011
The Board of Directors of Ellies are ever mindful of the increasing cost of printing the Annual Financial 

Report, where such company information is freely available through other technologies of today, such as our 
corporate website. 

We have thus decided to redirect the savings made by producing a smaller Annual Report, to our annual 
corporate social investment and development spend.

Should you require any information on the Ellies Group, please visit our website at www.elliesholdings.com 
or contact our CEO, Wayne Samson on 011 490 3800 for further information.

We will elaborate on the details of how the savings were spent in our 2012 Annual Report.
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20082011 20092010

Statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”)
Profit from operations
Headline earnings

Statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Shareholders' funds (capital and reserves)

Statement of cash flows
Cash generated by / (utilised from) operations

Share statistics (per share)
Earnings
Headline earnings
Distribution to shareholders
Net asset value
Tangible net asset value
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Shares in issue at year-end
Weighted average number of shares in issue
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Market capitalisation
Share price
Price earnings ratio

Selected ratios
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Quick asset ratio (current assets – inventories/current liabilities)
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Return on equity (Profit after tax/average shareholders' funds)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

The past year has been a wonderful period for both our country and for 
the Ellies Group. The excitement of the World Cup was celebrated 
throughout the world together with all the peoples of South Africa, where 
we proudly hosted the first world cup on the African continent. It is 
gratifying that the vast majority of Satellite TVs installed were within 
disadvantaged areas across South Africa. This excitement translated in 
to increased satellite sales with the whole nation wanting to view the 
games, being a great opportunity of a life time for many.

In November 2010 we transferred our listing from the Alternative 
Exchange to the Main Board's “Electronic and Electrical Sector” of the 
JSE Limited. 

A valued addition to our Board was the appointment of Mr Oliver Fortuin, 
as Lead Independent Director, effective April 2011. Oliver has more than 
20 years' experience in the technology industry, 15 of these with IBM. He 
is currently serving as a Senior Executive for IBM Sub-Saharan Africa. 
We believe that his vast experience and industry knowledge will serve 
Ellies well. 

Financial overview

The Group achieved strong growth during the year under review, with 
overall revenue up 14%. The overall margin for profits from operations 
for the Group increased to 11% for the period (2010: 10%) – a positive 
shift and a pleasing one to management given the current economic 
environment. Headline earnings per share (“HEPS”) increased to 31.42 
cents per share, a 21% increase from 25.96 cents per share in the 
previous period. Net profit after tax (“NPAT”) increased by 33% to R94.2 
million (2010: R70.9 million). Our largest segmental contribution, of 
83%, remains from the Consumer Goods and Services segment. The 
Infrastructural Electrification segment contributed 16% to overall 
revenue and both segments achieved profit from operations growth in 
excess of 20%. 

The earnings growth of 34.7% translates into a lower Earnings per Share 
(“EPS”) growth of 20.2% as a result of the rights offer. As at 30 April 2010, 
shares in issue amounted to 303 505 691, while the weighted average 
number of shares amounted to 270 944 245. 

The group's statement of financial position remains strong, with Net 
Asset Value (“NAV”) and Net Tangible Asset Value (“NTAV”) per share 
improving to 196 cents (2010: 170 cents) and 123 cents (2010: 96 cents) 
respectively.

We have implemented the previously stated strategy of acquiring our 
operating premises country-wide and, where appropriate, upgrade 
these premises. The Property segment invested R43.4 million as at year 
end. We anticipate that over time, the resultant capitalisation of property 
and the value growth will deliver sound returns. Currently the properties 
are financed through a 10-year facility to the value of R40 million. The 
Directors intend to continue with this long term investment strategy. 

Cash generation from operations during the period was healthy. At the 
period end, the cash position had grown by R38.6 million. Much of this 
cash improvement is due to additional creditor financing and significant 
cash receipts against contract orders placed prior to year end, with a 
significant portion now being utilised towards the fulfilment of these 
contract orders.

Products and services

The Ellies and Elsat divisions continued their solid performance with 
strong consumer demand for their products and services. The knock-on 
effect of the growth in satellite, translated into improved sales in all other 
TV / satellite related products.
Remote Blaster, plasma TV arms and second point products, showed 
strong growth as well. Our engineering department's productivity 
improved, as new tools and greater automation was introduced. Gross 
margins improved by more than 2%, due to economies of scale and 
improved efficiencies. New installations into hotels and business 
lounges at airports were also achieved by our corporate division. Our 
quality product offerings stood us in good stead with our reputation 
growing for both industrial audio and VGA/HDMI distribution.
We continue the development of products, with new moulds being 
designed and made, and products submitted to the regulatory body, 
NCRS, for approvals. We continue to endeavour to fill the gaps in the 
market with innovations needed to make the consumers life easier.

The performance of the Infrastructural Electrification segment reflects a 
substantial improvement, despite depressed conditions in the building 
and construction sector locally. This turnaround is largely due to the 
improved demand in the African mining and resources sector. In 
addition, the division's diversification into renewable and hybrid power 
solutions and to the telecommunications sector, has contributed to this 
improvement. 

We are extremely satisfied with our Infrastructural segment's significant 
recovery in the latter half of the year. The surge in the copper price and 
other recourses has seen activity in African mines dramatically 
increase, creating demands for upgraded electrical infrastructures. This 
recovery is expected to continue. The new transformer factory is gaining 
traction with supplies to Mozambique being executed and renewable 
energy solutions have been added to our product offering. These 
renewable energy solutions have created a unique offering to the 
telecommunications industry amongst others, where power in rural 
areas is limited. 

Human capital and transformation

The Ellies Installer School continues to be a success story where more 
than 300 learners have been taught the skills of satellite, terrestrial and 
audio installation. Many of these students then establish themselves 
into successful SMEs, with the growing need for their services. Our 
mission is to continue to develop these skills in our industry and prepare 
the country for the digital migration which is due to start in 2012.

Transformation remains one of our focuses within the Group. Our 
progress was confirmed when we achieved an externally accredited B-
BBEE status, largely attributed to our attention to SME's and learnership 
programs. In order to continue meeting our objectives and to improve on 
the Group's Social Citizenship programme, we have decided to redirect 
certain expenses savings into this area, amongst others, our Annual 
Report print saving.

We concluded an empowerment ownership transaction with the 
formation of In-toto Solutions (Pty) Limited, of which Ellies Holdings has 
51%, with our partner, Intoto Technology Investments, holding 49%. 
This company has strong BEE credentials and focuses on both 
government and large corporate projects. 
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Outlook

With this being our fourth year as a listed company on the JSE Limited 
and with a major acquisition being concluded, it is gratifying that we not 
only succeeded in integrating this acquisition, but have seen enormous 
opportunities continually presenting themselves through our 
diversification. Through these difficult economic times it is pleasing that 
even with a 30 year track record; we continue to build on our formidable 
and solid foundation and successfully enter into new diverse areas such 
as renewable energy, telecommunications, large project management 
and mass training, yet retaining our entrepreneurial skills without any 
sacrifice to our history.

Ellies, by its nature, will continue to grow and diversify by seeking new 
products and ventures, and in turn offering its solid customer base 
additional quality products and services. 
We, together with our strategic alliance partners, look forward to the 
imminent implementation of the Digital Terrestrial Television (“DTT”) 
migration rollout through Southern Africa. 

The Group continues its participation in energy conservation and the 
reduction of green house effects, with renewable energy sector products 
including solar power, solar heating and energy efficient lighting. In the 
past few months Ellies has secured new agencies and products in the 
lighting and power creation and conservation environment, to enhance 
its offerings. Ellies has established an Energy Efficient Office 
environment, running off the electrical power grid, which showcases our 
offerings. 

The Group intends utilising different forms of carbon financing, including 
the generation of carbon credits under the Clean Development 
Mechanism, to bring its renewable energy sector products to market in 
an affordable and sustainable manner.
With energy conservation in mind, Ellies conducted extensive research 
and investigation into energy efficient lighting resulting in partnerships 
with credible brands in both Compact Fluorescent Lamp (“CFL”) lighting 
and LED down lighters. This range of lighting has been launched and we 
expect a favourable response to these new offerings.

SkyeVine has begun operations, by providing internet satellite 
connectivity within Sub-Saharan Africa, with the successful launching of 
Intelsat's New Dawn Satellite. Ellies has a 45% interest in SkyeVine and 
will continue to invest and co-develop the opportunities. Returns from 
this investment are expected to be reflected in the coming years, with the 
growth in the subscriber base.
This venture not only utilises Ellies' established national and African 
logistic infrastructure but also adds a new dimension to our satellite 
division. SkyeVine's internet services will reach where terrestrial 
broadband providers cannot, and provide redundancies to customers 
that are unable to maintain constant broadband levels. It is an all-
inclusive Internet-via-Satellite solution. SkyeVine, with its unique 
product offering, is focused on growing the broadband subscriber base 
in Africa, by targeting the home user and small enterprise markets.

With the mining sector once again starting to spend on infrastructural 
developments, particularly in Africa, this segment's contribution is 
expected to continue to improve, which is supported by the current order 
book. The building and electrification sectors however, are recovering at 
a slower rate. Megatron's continued diversification into associated 
power products, renewable energy and telecommunications, together 
with the manufacture of transformers, is expected to contribute towards 

its future buoyancy. With a customer base, largely in Africa and with a 
volatile Rand, Megatron remains a substantive hedge against this.
The Board remains positive as regards the Group's continued organic 
growth, current new ventures, and new product opportunities which 
continue to present themselves.

Dividends

The payment of dividends is reviewed periodically, taking into account 
prevailing circumstances and future cash requirements. No dividend is 
proposed at this stage due to short term funding requirements to support 
working capital needs. 

Appreciation

We, together with our Co-Directors and fellow management, as always, 
recognise and appreciate the focused efforts and hard work of the 
Group's staff and continue to appreciate our customers, business 
partners, advisors, suppliers and most importantly our shareholders.

Executive chairman

Chief executive officer

10 October 2011

Ellie Salkow

Wayne Samson
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Ellies is fully committed to ensuring compliance with the principles of the 
Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct set out in the King III Report. 
The directors recognise the need to conduct the enterprise with integrity 
and in accordance with generally acceptable corporate practices. This 
includes timely, relevant and meaningful reporting to shareholders and 
other stakeholders, providing a proper and objective perspective of the 
company and its activities. 

The directors have, accordingly, established mechanisms and policies 
appropriate to the company's business in keeping with its commitment to 
best practices in corporate governance to ensure compliance with the 
King Code. The board reviews these policies from time to time.

The formal steps implemented in this regard include the following:

Board of directors
The board comprises five executive directors and four non-executive 
directors, three of whom are considered independent, including the lead 
independent non-executive director. Having regard to the current 
developmental stage of the company, the board is satisfied with its 
current composition, including the relevant board committees, and 
acknowledges that it does fully comply with the recommendations of the 
King Code in such regard. The board is satisfied that there is an 
appropriate balance of power and authority so that no one individual or 
block of individuals can dominate decision taking. The non-executive 
directors are individuals of calibre, credibility and have the necessary 
skills and experience to bring judgment to bear independent of 
management, on issues of strategy, performance, resources, 
transformation, diversity and employment equity, standards of conduct 
and evaluation of performance.

The information needs of the board are reviewed annually and directors 
have unrestricted access to all company information, records, 
documents and property to enable them to discharge their 
responsibilities sufficiently. Efficient and timely methods of informing and 
briefing board members prior to board meetings have been developed 
and steps taken to identify and monitor key risk areas, key performance 
areas and non-financial aspects relevant to Ellies operations. In this 
context, directors are given information on key performance indicators, 
variance reports and industry trends.

The board has an orientation programme to familiarise incoming 
directors with the company's operations, senior management and its 
business environment, and to induct them in their fiduciary duties and 
responsibilities. Directors receive further briefings from time to time on 
relevant new laws and regulations as well as on changing economic 
risks. New directors, with limited or no board experience, receive 
development and education to inform them of their duties, 
responsibilities, powers and potential liabilities.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by Ellies 
Holdings' ordinary shareholders at least once every three years in 
accordance with the company's articles of association.

The board has adopted a charter setting out its responsibilities including 
adoption of strategic plans, monitoring operational performance and 
management, determining policy and processes to ensure the integrity 
of the company's risk management and internal controls, 
communication policy and director selection, orientation and evaluation.

Board meetings are held at least quarterly, with additional meetings 

convened when required. The board sets the strategic objectives of the 
company and determines investment and performance criteria. It is also 
responsible for the proper management, control, compliance and 
ethical behaviour of the businesses under its direction. The board has 
established committees to give detailed attention to certain of its 
responsibilities. These operate within defined, written terms of 
reference. The board conducts a self-evaluation of itself from time to 
time.

Appointment of directors
Board appointments are conducted in a formal and transparent manner 
by the board as a whole, free from any dominance of any one particular 
shareholder.

New directors shall hold office until the next annual general meeting, at 
which they shall retire and become available for re-election. A brief 
curriculum vitae of each director standing re-election at the annual 
general meeting can be found on page 11 of this annual report.

A board directorship continuity programme will be established and 
maintained to review the performance and succession planning of 
executive directors and continuity of non-executive directors.

Audit and risk committee
The board has established an audit and risk committee which comprises 
three non-executive directors, all with the required degree of 
independence. The members are experienced businessmen and all are 
financially literate. The committee's primary objective is to provide the 
board with additional assurance regarding the efficacy and reliability of 
the financial information relied on by the directors, as well as to provide 
oversight in respect of risk management, in order to assist directors in 
the discharge of their duties. The committee provides assurance to the 
board that adequate and appropriate financial and operating controls 
are in place; that significant business, financial and other risks have 
been identified and are being suitably managed; and that satisfactory 
standards of governance, reporting and compliance are in operation. 
Within this context, the board remains responsible for the group's 
systems of internal financial and operational control. The executive 
directors are charged with the responsibility of determining the 
adequacy, extent and operation of these systems.

The audit committee meets at least twice a year. Executives and 
managers responsible for finance, a representative of the sponsor (Java 
Capital) and the external auditors (PKF), attend meetings as invitees.

Responsibilities of the committee include:
� Monitoring proposed changes in accounting policies;
� Advising the board on the accounting implications of 

transactions;
� Reviewing audit related functions and recommending the re-

appointment of the external auditors for approval by 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting;

� Assessing adherence to controls and systems within the 
company and, where necessary, recommending and 
monitoring improvements during the year;

� Providing oversight in respect of risk management process 
throughout the group;

� Monitoring and appraising internal operating structures and 
systems to ensure that these are maintained and continue to 
contribute to the ongoing success of the company.

� The committee has fulfilled its duties during the year in 
accordance with its written terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The audit committee set in place principles related to engagement 
for non-audit services of the external auditors or any other 
practising firm of auditors, which principals include:

� The essence of the work to be performed may not be of a nature 
that any reasonable and informed observer would construe as 
being detrimental to good corporate governance or in conflict 
with that normally undertaken by the accountancy profession;

� The nature of the work being performed will not affect the 
independence of the appointed external auditors in undertaking 
the normal audit assignments;

� The work being done may not conflict with any requirement of 
IFRS or principles of good corporate governance;

� Consideration to the operational structure, internal standards 
and processes that were adopted by the audit firm in order to 
ensure that audit independence is maintained in the event that 
such audit firm is engaged to perform accounting or other 
services to its client base. Specifically:

Ø The company may not appoint a firm of auditors to improve 
systems or processes where such firm of auditors will later be 
required to express a view as to the functionality or 
effectiveness of such systems or processes;

Ø The total fee earned by an audit firm for non-audit services in 
any financial year of the company, expressed as a percentage 
of the total fee for audit services, may not exceed 35% without 
the approval of the board;

Ø A firm of auditors will not be engaged to perform any 
management functions (e.g. acting as curator) without the 
express prior approval of the board. A firm of auditors may be 
engaged to perform operational functions, including that of 
bookkeeping, when such firm of auditors are not the 
appointed external auditors of the company and work is being 
performed under management supervision.

Information relating to the use of non-audit services from the 
appointed external auditors of the company is disclosed in the 
notes to the annual financial statements. Separate disclosure of 
the amounts paid to the appointed external auditors for non-
audit services, as opposed to audit services, are made in the 
annual financial statements.

Risk management and internal controls
The objective of risk management is to identify, assess, manage and 
monitor the risks to which the business is exposed.

The most significant risks faced by Ellies are:
� impact of various macro-economic conditions,
� competitors within the industry,
� foreign currency risk.

Furthermore, the level of borrowings and the exposure to interest rate 
movement is carefully monitored and covered.

Where relevant and with assistance from expert risk consultants, risks 
are assessed and appropriate insurance cover purchased for all material 
risks above pre-determined self-insured limits. Levels of cover are re-
assessed annually in light of claims experience and events affecting the 
group, internally and externally.

To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, management 
have implemented systems of internal control, comprising policies, 
procedures, systems and information to assist in:

� safeguarding assets and reducing the risk of loss, error, fraud 
and other irregularities;

� ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records 
and reporting;

� the timely preparation of reliable financial statements and 
information in compliance with relevant legislation and generally 
accepted accounting policies and practices.

Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee is mandated by the board to set the 
remuneration and incentive strategies and arrangements of all executive 
directors of both the holding company and main subsidiary company. In 
addition, the remuneration committee recommends directors' fees 
payable to non-executive directors and members of board sub-
committees. These fees are approved by shareholders at the annual 
general meeting.

It is also responsible for measuring the performance of the executive 
directors in discharging their functions and responsibilities.

The committee comprises three non-executive directors, and is chaired 
by an independent non-executive director. The remuneration committee 
meets when necessary but at least once a year. The Executive 
Chairman, CEO and CFO attend meetings as invitees.

Remuneration philosophy:
Ellies is committed to its shareholders and therefore determines its 
remuneration policy and philosophy on best practices in the market 
place. The Group's Directors are remunerated on a cost to company 
basis, which includes benefits such as medical aid, life insurance, death 
cover, disability and retirement. Increases and incentives are based on 
individual performance and measured against defined targets for the 
Group.

Directors' emoluments are set out in the directors' report in the annual 
financial statements on page 17 of the annual report.

Directors' dealings and professional advice
The company operates a policy (in compliance with the JSE Listings 
Requirements) of prohibiting dealings by directors and certain other 
managers in periods immediately preceding the announcement of its 
interim and year-end financial results, any period while the company is 
trading under cautionary announcement and at any other time deemed 
necessary by the board. All announcements regarding trades in 
securities of the company that are required to be announced on SENS 
(in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements) are co-ordinated through the 
CEO and the company sponsor.
 
The board has established a procedure for directors, in furtherance of 
their duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at the 
company's expense. All directors have access to the advice and services 
of the company secretary.

Company secretary
The company has engaged the services of an independent, professional 
company secretarial practice. The company secretary provides the 
board as a whole and directors individually with detailed guidance as to 
how their responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best 
interest of the company. The company secretary provides a central 
source of guidance and advice to the board, and within the company, on 
matters of ethics and good corporate governance. The company 
secretary will be subjected to an annual evaluation by the board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

Investments
The board meets when necessary to consider acquisitions and sales of 
investments.

Communication
In all communications with stakeholders, the board aims to present a 
balanced and understandable assessment of Ellies' position. This is 
done through adhering to principles of openness and substance over 
form and striving to address material matters of significant interest and 
concern to all stakeholders. The board encourages shareholder 
attendance at general meetings and where appropriate provides full and 
understandable explanations of the effects of resolutions to be 
proposed.

Communication with institutional shareowners and investment analysts 
is maintained through presentations of financial results, one-on-one 

visits, trading statements and press announcements of interim and final 
results, as well as the proactive dissemination of any messages 
considered relevant to investors.

King III: Areas of inadequate compliance with recommendations
The following is a list of the areas where there is inadequate compliance 
with recommended principles and which the board will be giving 
attention to during the forthcoming financial year in order to improve the 
level of governance:

� Integrated reporting: refinement and improvement of integrated 
reporting generally to be implemented

� Board composition: acknowledgement that there is not a 
majority of non-executive directors.

� Information technology: the development of a long term IT 
strategy 

for the year ended 30 April 2011

Board Remuneration
Committee

Audit and
Risk Committee

ER Salkow (Chairman)
WMG Samson (CEO)
MF Levitt (CFO)
RH Berkman
RE Otto
AC Brooking*

@ ̂MR Goodford 
@ #MS Mazwi 

&OD Fortuin 

3 (3)
3 (3)
3 (3)
3 (3)
2 (3)
3 (3)
3 (3)
2 (3)
1 (1)

-
-
>2 (2)
-
-

1 (1)
-

2 (2)
1 (1)

>2 (2)
>2 (2)
>2 (2)
-
-
-

2 (2)
- (2)
1 (1)

Attendance / Participation at meetings

& @ # ^ >* Non-executive  Lead Independent Non-executive  Independent Non-executive  Chairman audit committee  Chairman remuneration committee  by invitation
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Employment equity
Ellies' places particular emphasis on the development and training of its 
people, and will endeavour to ensure that employees are offered equal 
opportunity and appropriate participation.

BBBEE and transformation
A BBBEE generic varification certificate has been issued to Ellies as a 
Level 6 Contributor and Value Adding Supplier.

Ethics
Ellies is committed to promoting the highest standards of ethical 
behaviour among all its employees and business associates.

Environment
Ellies' recognises that its activities have an impact on the environment. 
Ellies' has adopted a strategy that strives to minimise this impact by 
regularly reviewing its activities and compliance with all relevant 
legislation.

The group's direct activities do not pose any threat to the environment in 
which it operates. The activities do not generate any significant pollution 
that may require the future rehabilitation of land or cause other 
environmental effects harmful to the surrounding communities.

Corporate social responsibility
As a participant in the SA economy, the company acknowledges its 
responsibility towards the community. Where appropriate there is 
participation in programmes aimed at education, training or the 
improvement of previously disadvantaged communities.

Examples of such participation would include:
� A partner in “Township TV”. Township TV aims to provide the 

Townships of South Africa with a unique form of entertainment, 
in a safe and secure environment, at no cost to the people, by 
installing Big Screen TV's in strategic locations within the 
Township Communities. There are currently 12 of these venues 
country wide.

� Ellies Installer Schools. The Installer Training School was 
established with the purpose of empowering the unemployed 
and potential entrepreneurs in South Africa. The school assists 
learners to acquire business and life skills and also empowers 
them with the skills to install aerial, satellite and sound systems. 
To date, Ellies has equipped over 200 learners with installation 
skills.

Health and safety
Ellies' acknowledges its responsibility to its employees and complies 
with applicable legislation regarding quality, safety, health and the 
environment. We aim to provide and maintain, as far as practicably 
possible, a working environment that is safe without material risk to the 
health of our employees.

During the past year we had no fatalities and only a few minor injuries of 
staff whilst on duty. The group however aims to have zero incidents and 
accordingly these incidents, although considered minor, were fully 
investigated and corrective action taken where necessary.

Staff are issued the necessary safety equipment, and trained in the use 
thereof, for use in potential risk areas such as exposure to chemicals or 
noisy processes. These potential risk areas are reviewed and tested on a 
regular basis to ensure compliance with relevant regulations.

All operations have trained first aid staff members that undergo 
certification on a regular basis. Where appropriate the operations offer 
outsourced on-site medical services.
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ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED DIRECTORATE for the year ended 30 April 2011

Elliott Salkow began his career as a salesman and honed his 
entrepreneur skills early in South Africa and later in the United Kingdom. 
On returning to South Africa to sell television aerials for the then, Aerial 
King, where he was employed in-house at the company as a sales 
representative.

In 1979, he started Ellies and with great entrepreneurial spirit and flair, he 
soon recognised, exploited and created the opportunities. With his 
natural business instinct, mathematical mind and talent in delegation 
and motivation, he steadily grew the business from 5 staff to the 
business it is today some 30 years later.

Today Ellie remains “hands-on” and involved in all aspects of the 
business. Hisinstinct and experience remains a valuable asset to Ellies.

Elliot Salkow Chairman of the Board (58)

Oliver has more than 21 years' experience in the technology industry, 16 
of these with IBM. He currently serves as General Manager, IBM South 
Africa, a role he assumed in July 2009.  

Prior to rejoining IBM in July 2009, Fortuin was the Managing Director of 
Hewlett-Packard South Africa and General Manager, Technology 
Solutions Group (TSG).  In this role he drove the enterprise hardware, 
software and services business, and lead the regional management 
team. 

Prior to that, Fortuin was Hewlett-Packard South Africa's Director for HP 
Services. 

Prior to joining HP in 2006, he held various executive positions in the IBM 
Corporation, including General Manager of the IBM PC Business for 
Africa. He joined Lenovo South Africa as a member of the EMEA 
(Europe, Middle East & Africa) management team when Lenovo 
acquired IBM's PC business in 2005.

Oliver Fortuin Lead Independent Non-Executive Director (44)

Malcolm Goodford has had a career of twenty-three years in the IT 
industry. He joined Burroughs Computers as a trainee engineer in 1985 
and attended a number of developmental programmes over the coming 
years. Since 1985, Malcolm held numerous senior positions with a 
number of major companies and worked abroad (Geneva and US) for a 
short while. These positions have ranged from technical roles through to 
senior jobs in sales and marketing. Malcolm left full-time employment to 
start his own business in 1998. The company he formed, MG and 
Associates is an executive search and niche recruitment and ICT 
consultancy.

Malcolm Goodford Independent Non-Executive Director (45)

Andrew is a founder and director of Java Capital (Pty) Limited and has 
more than 20 years' experience in mergers and acquisitions and capital 
markets.

Andrew Brooking Non-Executive Director (47)
BA LLB (Wits); LLM (Notre Dame, USA)

Mahlubi qualified as a chartered accountant with Deloitte &Touche. He 
has worked in the financial services industry for the last 13 years in 
various roles including corporate finance, investments, and financial 
management. Mahlubi is also a member of the audit and risk committees 
of the Gauteng Economic Development Agency and the SABC.

Mziwamahlubi Mazwi (41)
Independent Non-Executive Director
B Com (Natal); CA (SA)

Ryan qualified at Rand Afrikaans University with a B Comm in 
Accounting and a Higher Diploma in Tax Law. He co-founded Megatron 
Engineering (Pty) Ltd in 2000.The company was expanded into 5 
operating areas in the fields of power generation, transmission and 
distribution. After 8 years in operations, Ryan negotiated the sale of the 
Megatron Federal group to Ellies Holdings Limited and has served on 
the board since 15 July 2008.

Ryan Otto (31)
B Com H Dip Tax (RAU)

Wayne has been a loyal member of the Ellies team for over 20 years, 
elevating himself from his initial position as an assistant in the dispatch 
and factory to General Manager in 1993. Wayne was appointed in 1998 
as the Operations Director and CEO of Ellies Holdings in 2007.

Wayne Samson Chief Executive Officer (47)

After qualifying with Fisher Hoffman Levenberg in 1971, Mike and his 
brother established the renowned clothing group, Goophee's, growing 
the operations to 14 branches which was subsequently sold as Smiley 
Blue in 1984. After serving the Fintech Group for more than 13 years as 
divisional MD, Mike joined Ellies in 1997. He started as financial 
manager and after 6 months was promoted to financial director, the 
position he holds today.

Michael Levitt Chief Financial Officer (63)
B Com (Wits); CA (SA)

Raymond worked at Woolworths as Department Manager for a number 
of years. He joined Ellies in 1980, where he brought with him the 
structures and techniques he learned and assisted in the creation of the 
foundation on which Ellies now stands. In 1985 he pioneered by 
establishing Ellies Cape Town as the first official branch of Ellies 
Electronics. He remains the force currently behind the continued 
success of the Western Cape region.

Raymond Berkman (55)
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for the year ended 30 April 2011ELLIES SUBSIDIARIES DIRECTORATE

Grant Davis (50)Director - Port Elizabeth Mike Miller (66)Director - Technical 

Gary Gillingham (50)Director - Electrical Products Mark Richter Director - Corporate Division (43)

Vic Haskins (52)Director - Finance Barry Shum Director - Nelspruit and Swaziland (49)

Micheal Livanos (42)Director - Engineering 
Gary Wiltshire Director - Bloemfontein & Renewable Energy 
(40)

Gavin Melville (44)Director - Polokwane 

Dedreich Otto (53)Director 

Clinton Olckers (43)Director - Namibia 

Yasmin Duarte (57)Director 

Grant Melville (45)Director - Natal 

Jean-Pierre Ford (31)Director 

Peter van Vuuren (37)Director - Botswana 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

for the year ended 30 April 2011

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the adequacy of accounting records, the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control 
environment, the appropriateness of accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. The directors further 
acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements, adherence to applicable accounting standards and presentation of 
related information that fairly presents the state of affairs and the results of the company and of the group.

The annual financial statements set out in this report, incorporate the results for the year ended 30 April 2011. They have been prepared by the directors in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and in the manner required by the South African Companies Act. They incorporate 
full and adequate disclosure and are based on appropriate accounting policies which have been applied and which are supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates.

In the context of the audit carried out for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fair presentation of the annual financial statements, the auditors 
have concurred with the disclosures of the directors on going concern. 

The external auditors are not responsible for providing an independent assessment of internal financial controls but are responsible for reporting on 
whether the annual financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with IFRS. The external audit offers reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on 
the accuracy of financial disclosures.

Board approval

The annual financial statements were approved by the board of directors and are signed on its behalf by:

ER Salkow MF Levitt
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

20 July 2011

In our capacity as Company Secretary we declare, in terms of the South African Companies Act, that for the year ended 30 April 2011 the company has 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of this Act and that all such returns are true, correct 
and up to date.

Probity Business Services (Pty) Limited
Company Secretary

20 July 2011



ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED15

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT for the year ended 30 April 2011

TO THE MEMBERS OF ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the annual financial statements
We have audited the group annual financial statements and annual financial statements of Ellies Holdings Limited which comprise the consolidated and 
separate statements of financial position as at 30 April 2011, and the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, 
and the directors' report, as set out on pages 16 to 47.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements and group financial statements
The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Ellies Holdings Limited 
as at 30 April 2011, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

PKF (Jhb) Inc.
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registration number: 1994/001166/21
Director: RM Huiskamp
Johannesburg
20 July 2011
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT for the year ended 30 April 2011

The directors present their annual report, which forms part of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Ellies Holdings Limited for the 
year ended 30 April 2011.

Nature of business
The group is involved in:
� The manufacture, import and distribution of premium quality TV and video equipment-related products under the “Ellies” brand,

� The manufacture, import and distribution of premium quality satellite and associated equipment under the “Elsat” brand,

� “Ellies Corporate” and “Elsat Rentals” divisions, deal with industrial audio, satellite and TV distribution systems respectively,

� “Ellies Renewable Energy” division focuses on thermal, electric and other solutions through alternative energy products, to conserve energy 
expenditure for your household and to protect the environment,

� “Megatron Federal” division manufactures products for power generation for distribution and transmission and is dominant in the area of domestic 
electrical and surge protection,

� In-Toto Solutions is a broad-based company formed to leverage the collective strengths of its shareholders to establish a presence and project 
management competence in the clean energy space,

� SkyeVine will provide “satellite-based broadband” to Sub-Sahara Africa, where terrestrial broadband providers cannot reach.

Group results
Details of the consolidated and separate financial results, financial position and cash flows are set out in the audited annual financial statements.

Going concern
The directors believe that the group has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the 
annual financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis.

Share capital
There were no changes to the authorised and issued share capital during the year.

The company's unissued shares have been placed under the control of the directors until the upcoming annual general meeting.

Borrowing powers
The company has unlimited borrowing powers in terms of its Articles of Association.

Subsidiaries and associates
Details of the company's interest in subsidiaries and associates at 30 April 2011 and at the date of this report are set out in notes 4 and 5, respectively, to 
the annual financial statements.

Directors
Directors in office during the period under review and at the date of this report:

 
ER Salkow (Chairman)
WMG Samson (Chief executive officer)
MF Levitt (Chief financial officer)
RH Berkman MS Mazwi
RE Otto MR Goodford

In terms of the articles of association, the following directors will retire as directors at the upcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election:
� OD Fortuin
� ER Salkow 
� MF Levitt
� RH Berkman

Executive

Independent non-executive

Lead Independent non-executive Non-executive
OD Fortuin (appointed 11 April 2011) AC Brooking
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Directors' emoluments
Details of emoluments paid to directors are as follows:

# These fees relate to the purchase of 250,000 Ellies shares during 2010, and cover a period of service for 3 years.

For the year ended 30 April 2011:

For the year ended 30 April 2010:

At 30 April 2011:

Total

R

Bonus

R

Medical aid
and pension

benefits
R

Fees for
services as

director
R

Basic salary
 and

allowances
R

1,591,692

1,988,412

1,774,620

1,485,888

1,810,250

-

8,650,862

-

-

-

-

-

283,334

283,334

2,111,783

3,203,167

2,948,934

2,144,856

1,965,575

283,334

12,657,649

489,073

1,085,564

1,022,748

575,040

-

-

3,172,425

31,018

129,191

151,566

83,928

155,325

-

551,028

Director

Executive directors

ER Salkow

WMG Samson

MF Levitt

RH Berkman

RE Otto

Non-executive directors

MR Goodford #

Total

R

Bonus

R

Medical aid
and pension

benefits
R

Fees for
services as

director
R

Basic salary
 and

allowances
R

1,495,152

1,684,824

1,551,096

1,405,154

1,616,640

-

7,752,866

-

-

-

-

-

141,667

141,667

2,004,217

2,265,668

2,117,981

1,896,346

1,754,273

141,667

10,180,152

485,688

501,494

490,350

423,617

-

-

1,901,149

23,377

79,350

76,535

67,575

137,633

-

384,470

Director

Executive directors

ER Salkow

WMG Samson

MF Levitt

RH Berkman

RE Otto

Non-executive directors

MR Goodford

Directors' shareholding
At 30 April 2011, directors held 138,514,350 shares (2010: 139,191,350) or 45.64% (2010: 45.86%) of the issued ordinary share capital of the company. 
Save for the shareholdings detailed below, no other director in office during the period under review held any interest in the issued ordinary share capital of 
the company. 

Total
Indirect

beneficial
Indirect

Non-beneficial /
Associates

Executive directors
ER Salkow
WMG Samson
MF Levitt
RH Berkman
RE Otto
Non-executive directors
AC Brooking
MR Goodford
MS Mazwi

83,083,658
4,094,100
3,587,100
3,308,748

26,359,923

83,083,658
4,094,100
3,587,100

11,007,108
28,361,499

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

7,698,360
2,001,576

125,000
250,000
225,000

121,033,529

405,885
250,000

7,725,000
138,514,350

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

280,885
-

7,500,000
17,480,821

Direct
beneficial

Direct
non-beneficial

Director

No share options have been awarded at the date of this report.
There has been no change in the directors' shareholding from the year end to the date of this report.
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for the year ended 30 April 2011

At 30  April 2010:

Total
Indirect

beneficial
Indirect

Non-beneficial /
Associates

Executive directors
ER Salkow
WMG Samson
MF Levitt
RH Berkman
RE Otto
Non-executive directors
AC Brooking
MR Goodford
MS Mazwi

55,963,892
2,295,200
1,785,200
5,056,810

18,222,667

85,703,658
4,064,100
3,554,100
9,127,108

28,361,499

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

29,739,766
1,768,900
1,768,900
4,070,298

10,138,832

125,000
250,000
225,000

83,923,769

405,885
250,000

7,725,000
139,191,350

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

280,885
-

7,500,000
55,267,581

Direct
beneficial

Direct
non-beneficial

Director

Salient terms of the service and restraint agreements of executive directors
The directors' service agreements contain terms and conditions that are standard for these types of agreements and are terminable on three months' 
notice by either party. The directors are remunerated during their notice period and the contracts contain restraint of trade provisions in terms of which the 
directors are restrained from competing with the group during their employment and for a period of two years after termination of their employment with the 
group. There were no changes from the prior year.

Company secretary
The secretary of the company is Probity Business Services (Pty) Limited.

Audit committee report
The committee has fulfilled its responsibilities for the year under review. Full details of the responsibilities and duties of the audit committee are included in 
the “Corporate Governance” section.

The scope, independence and objectivity of the external auditors was reviewed. The audit firm PKF (Jhb) Inc., and audit partner RM Huiskamp, are, in the 
committee's opinion, independent of the company. The nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors has been reviewed to 
ensure that the fees for such services do not become so significant as to call into question their independence. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that there was no material breakdown in the internal accounting controls during the financial year. This was based on the 
information and explanations given by management as well as discussion with the independent external auditors on the results of their audits.

The nature and extent of future non-audit services have been defined and pre-approved.
As at the date of this report, no complaints have been received relating to accounting practices of the Company or to the content or auditing of the 
Company's financial statements, or to any related matter.

The committee also satisfied itself that Mr. MF Levitt has the competence, experience and qualifications required of a financial director of a public listed 
company. Mr. Levitt is a member of the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Special resolution
The following special resolution was passed at the AGM on 17 November 2010 and registered by CIPRO on 6 December 2010:
� General authority for directors to effect share repurchases.

No other special resolutions were passed during the period under review.

Dividends

The payment of dividends is reviewed periodically, taking into account prevailing circumstances and future cash requirements. No dividend is proposed at 
this stage due to short term funding requirements to support working capital needs. The directors remain determined to declare a dividend when 
appropriate.

A cash dividend of 5 cents per share was declared for the 2010 year.

Post balance sheet events

No material fact or circumstance has occurred between year end and the date of this report which has a material impact on the consolidated and separate 
financial position of the company.
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COMPANY

2010
R’000

GROUP

2010
R’000

COMPANY

2011
R’000Notes

309,553

76,584

217,554

6,434

1,039

7,942

GROUP

2011
R’000

964,793

1

2

3

4

5

6

337,637

-

-

-

337,637

-

-

508,057

264,159

33,059

217,554

7,936

-

5,610

774,188

337,637

-

-

-

337,637

-

-

520,036

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant & equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in associate

Deferred taxation

655,240

358,895

224,319

418

71,608

7

8

9

10

170,420

-

-

-

169,730

690

510,029

297,811

193,365

634

18,219

182,399

-

-

-

182,210

189

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Taxation receivable

Loans to subsidiaries

Bank and cash balances

Total assets

596,079

3

501,491

(178,875)

274,824

597,443

(1,364)

11

12

13

494,232

3

501,491

-

(7,262)

494,232

-

517,254

3

501,491

(178,667)

194,427

517,254

-

519,792

3

501,491

-

18,298

519,792

-

Equity and liabilities

Total shareholders’ interests

Share capital

Share premium

Non-distributable reserves

Retained earnings / (losses)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

44,059

43,913

146

14

6

-

-

-

33,625

33,625

-

-

-

-

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities

Deferred taxation

324,655

29,672

-

245,182

2,258

1,099

188

46,256

14

15

16

17

10

13,825

-

13,607

212

-

6

-

-

223,309

23,380

13,607

147,346

1,493

6,011

-

31,472

244

-

-

48

-

8

188

-

Current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities

Vendor loans payable

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Taxation payable

Shareholders for dividends

Bank overdrafts

964,793 508,057774,188 520,036Total equity and liabilities
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COMPANY

2010
R’000

GROUP

2010
R’000

COMPANY

2011
R’000Notes

GROUP

2011
R’000

1,316,055

(819,059)

-

-

1,156,478

(748,361)

-

-

Revenue

Cost of sales

496,996 -408,117 -Gross profit

2,816 475 5,849 43,178Other income

(340,026)

(12,229)

(1,502)

(442)

-

-

(281,533)

(11,904)

(1,428)

(426)

-

-

Operating expenses

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Profit from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Share of losses from associate

146,055

548

(12,819)

(531)

18

19

20

5

33

-

(1,785)

-

119,101

948

(19,719)

-

42,752

-

(481)

-

133,253

(39,044)21

(1,752)

(9)

100,330

(29,363)

42,271

(1,535)

Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation

94,209 (1,761)70,967 40,736Profit / (loss) for the year

(208)

94,001

-

(1,761)

(332)

70,635

-

40,736

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation reserve

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

95,573

(1,364)

94,209

(1,761)

-

(1,761)

70,967

-

70,967

40,736

-

40,736

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Net profit / (loss) after tax

95,365

(1,364)

94,001

(1,761)

-

(1,761)

70,635

-

70,635

40,736

-

40,736

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

2010Notes 2011

31.49
31.42
32.09
31.49
31.42
32.09

-

196.40
122.81

26.19
25.96
29.43
23.38
23.18
26.27

5.00

170.43
96.46

Basic earnings per share (cents)
Headline earnings per share (cents)
Core headline earnings per share (cents)
Diluted earnings per share (cents)
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents)
Diluted core earnings per share (cents)
Dividends per share (cents)

Net asset value per share (cents)
Tangible net asset value per share (cents)

22
22
22
22
22
22
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for the year ended 30 April 2011STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Total equity

R’000

Equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders of 
the parent

R’000

Non-
controlling 

interests

R’000

Non-
distrabutable 

reserves

R’000

Retained 
earnings / 

(losses)

R’000

Balances as at 30 April 2009

Balances as at 30 April 2009

Shares issued at a premium

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

Shares issued at a premium

Total comprehensive loss for

the year

** Amounts less than R1 000

Share 
premium

R’000

Share 
capital

R’000

GROUP:

COMPANY:

Balances as at 30 April 2010

Balances as at 30 April 2010

Balances as at 30 April 2011

Balances as at 30 April 2011

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

Dividends paid

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividends paid

385,685

517,254

596,079

385,685

435,059

517,254

494,232

597,443

519,792

-

-

(1,364)

(178,335)

-

(178,667)

-

(178,875)

-

123,460

(5,501)

194,427

(7,262)

274,824

18,298

440,557

440,557

501,491

501,491

501,491

501,491

3

3

3

3

3

3

-**

-

-**

-

-

-

-

-

60,934

-

60,934

-

-

-

-

-

-

(332)

-

-

(208)

-

-

-

-

70,967

-

(1,761)

95,573

(15,176)

40,736

(15,176)

60,934

70,635

60,934

(1,761)

95,365 
(15,176)

40,736

(15,176)

-

-

(1,364)

-

60,934

70,635

94,001

(15,176)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended 30 April 2011

COMPANY

2010
R’000

GROUP

2010
R’000

COMPANY

2011
R’000Notes

GROUP

2011
R’000

93,290

166,000

548

(12,338)

(45,932)

(14,988)

(57,177)

(56,503)

896

-

(1,570)

2,492

-

16,580

(14,088)

38,605

(13,253)

25,352

71,608

(46,256)

25,352

23

19

24

25

26

192

198

-

-

(6)

-

16,559

-

-

-

16,559

-

(16,071)

(1,845)

-

(14,226)

680

10

690

690

-

690

63,268

101,805

948

(11,363)

(28,122)

-

(17,388)

(14,545)

1,627

(4,470)

-

(5,566)

(1,845)

20,432

(24,153)

40,314

(53,567)

(13,253)

18,219

(31,472)

(13,253)

(16,620)

(99)

-

-

(1,533)

(14,988)

30,207

-

-

-

30,207

-

(14,088)

-

-

(14,088)

(501)

690

189

189

-

189

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from / (utilised by) operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Taxation paid

Dividends paid

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Increase in loans and subsidiaries

Investment in associate

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from share issue (net of costs)

Increase in interest bearing liabilities

Repayment of vendor loans

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

Cash and equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and equivalents consist of:
Bank and cash balances
Bank overdrafts
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies as set out below have been applied, IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
unless otherwise stated. � Consequential amendments from changes to IAS 27: 

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Clarification 
on the transition rules in respect of the disposal or partial 
disposal of an interest in a foreign operation) (1 July 2010)

These annual financial statements have been prepared in conformity IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the AC500 

� Simplification of the disclosure requirements for government 
series of interpretations, the requirements of the South African 

related entities (1 January 2011)
Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited, on 
the historic cost basis except in the case of financial instruments which � Clarification of the definition of related party (1 January 2011)
are measured using the fair value and amortised cost models. The 

IAS 27: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statementspreparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS 
� Transition requirement for amendments arising as a result of IAS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

27 (1 July 2010)assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts in the annual financial statements. The areas involving a IAS 28: Investments in Associates
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where � Consequential amendments from changes to IAS 27: 
assumptions or estimates are significant to the annual financial Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Clarification 
statements are disclosed under the management estimates heading. on the transition rules in respect of the disposal or partial 

disposal of an interest in a foreign operation) (1 July 2010)
1.1 New/revised standards applied for the first time 

IAS 31: Interests in Joint Venturesin 2010
� Consequential amendments from changes to IAS 27: � IFRS 3 (revised): Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Clarification 
� IAS 27 (revised): Consolidated and Separate Financial on the transition rules in respect of the disposal or partial 

Statements disposal of an interest in a foreign operation) (1 July 2010)

1.2 Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet IAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation
effective � Accounting for rights issues (including rights, options or 

At the date of approving these annual financial statements, the warrants) that are denominated in a currency other than the 
following standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet functional currency of the Issuer (1 February 2010)
effective (effective from the annual periods beginning on or after the 

IAS 34: Interim Financial Reportingdate shown in brackets):
� Significant events and transactions (1 January 2011)

IFRS 3: Business Combinations The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and 
� Transition requirements for contingent consideration from a interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the 

business combination that occurred before the effective date of financial statements of the company.
the revised IFRS (1 January 2011);

� Measurement of non-controlling interests (1 January 2011);

� Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share based payment 2.1 Basis of Consolidation
awards (1 January 2011); The group annual financial statements consolidate the financial 

statements of the company and all subsidiaries and associates.� Amendments require additional disclosure on transfer 
transactions of financial assets, including the possible effects of 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group, where control is the any residual risks that the transferring entity retains. The 
power to directly or indirectly govern the financial and operating amendments also require additional disclosures if a 
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefit from its activities, disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken 
regardless of whether this power is actually exercised. The existence around the end of a reporting period (1 July 2011)
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures convertible are considered when assessing whether the group 
� Clarification of disclosures (1 January 2011); controls another entity. Where the group's interest in subsidiaries is 

less than 100%, the share attributable to outside shareholders is � Additional disclosure on transfer transactions of financial assets 
reflected in minority interests. Subsidiaries are included in the financial (1 July 2011)
statements from the date control commences until the date control 

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments ceases.
� New standard that forms the first part of a three part project to 

replace IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and The group recognises its share of associates' results as a one line 
Measurement (1 January 2013) entry before tax in the income statement, after accounting for interest, 

tax and minority interests. Investments in associates are accounted for IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements
by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. 

� Clarification of statement of changes in equity (1 January 2011)
The group's investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any 
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.IAS 12: Income Taxes

� Rebuttable presumption introduced that an investment property 
will be recovered in its entirety through sale (1 July 2012)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The group's share of its associates' post-acquisition profits or losses is The profit or loss arising on the disposal or scrapping of an asset is the 
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
reserve movements is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post- asset and is recognised as income or expense.
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of Impairment of property, plant and equipment
the investment. When the group's share of losses in an associate The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other annually for an indication of whether or not the relevant asset is 
unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, impaired. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying 
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or 
associate. cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the 
Subsidiary companies in the separate financial statements higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses and reversals are recognised directly in the 

statement of comprehensive income under the line item “operating 
expenses”. Reversals of impairments are limited to the carrying In the event that businesses in subsidiaries are restructured and 
amount of the asset had no impairment been recognised previously.transferred to other subsidiaries in the group, the carrying value of the 

investment in the original subsidiary is reallocated to the carrying value 
of the subsidiary that now houses the business. 2.3 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the 
risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are Associate companies in the separate financial statements
transferred from the lessor to the group as lessee.  Assets subject to Investments in associates are accounted for at cost less accumulated 
finance leases are capitalised at their cash cost equivalent with the impairment losses.
related lease obligation recognised at the same value. Capitalised 
leased assets are depreciated to their estimated residual values over Intra-group transactions and balances
their estimated useful lives.  Finance lease payments are allocated, All inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits between 
using the effective interest rate method, between lease finance costs, the group and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
which is included in financing costs, and the capital repayment, which 
reduced the liability to the lessor.  Leases where the lessor retains Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its 
risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset are classified associates are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in the 
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
charged against income. Rentals payable under operating leases are transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the transferred. Associates' accounting policies have been changed 
relevant lease.where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 

the group.
2.4 Intangible Assets
GoodwillTransactions and outside shareholders' interests
Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the fair value of the The group applied a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling 
purchase consideration over the fair value of the net identifiable assets interests as transactions with equity holders of the group.  Gains or 
acquired. The costs of integrating and re-organising acquired losses arising on the disposal of interests to non-controlling parties, 
businesses are charged to the post acquisition statement of that do not result in a loss of control, are accounted for directly in the 
comprehensive income. All acquisition related costs are expensed as statement of changes in equity.  Any excess or deficit that occurs on 
incurred.the purchase of interests from non-controlling parties, where the group 

already has control, are accounted for directly in the statement of 
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. changes in equity.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Gains and losses on the 
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to 2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
the entity sold.Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the 
Other intangible assetscost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life. 
Other intangible assets are shown at historical cost less accumulated Subsequently, property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less 
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to the accumulated depreciation and impairment. Useful lives and residual 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the values are reassessed at the end of each financial period. The useful 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are life applicable to each category of property, plant and equipment is 
indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for estimated as follows:
impairment at the end of each financial period. Other intangible assets 
are amortised from the date they are available for use.Land Not depreciated

Freehold buildings and infrastructure 20 to 50 years
The useful life applicable to each category of intangible asset is Plant and equipment 10 to 20 years
estimated as follows:Motor vehicles  4 to 5 years
Customer related 1 - 3 yearsComputer equipment  2 to 4 years
Marketing related 10 yearsOffice equipment 10 years
Development costs 20 yearsFurniture and equipment  6 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the duration of lease 
Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and period
adjusted if appropriate.

for the year ended 30 April 2011
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2.5 Inventories taxation rates is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income, except to the extent that it relates to transactions recognised Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, 
directly in equity.which ever is the lowest. Costs are determined on the following basis:

Finished goods are valued at cost on a first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis.  Secondary taxation on companies (STC)
Where necessary, specific provision is made for obsolete, redundant Secondary tax on companies is provided in respect of dividend 
and slow-moving inventories, while provisions are made, based on the payments net of dividends received or receivable and is recognised as 
age of merchandise. a taxation charge for the year.

Net realisable value is calculated as the estimated selling price less 2.8 Business Combinations
estimated costs to completion and marketing, selling and distribution Goodwill
costs. Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the costs of 

acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable 
2.6 Foreign Currency assets (including intangibles), liabilities and contingent liabilities of the 
Transactions acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Where the fair value of the 

Group's share of separable net assets acquired exceeds the fair value Transactions in foreign currencies are converted to South African 
of the consideration, the difference is recorded as negative goodwill. Rand at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. 
Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised immediately Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are stated in South African 
in the statement of comprehensive income.Rand using rates of exchange ruling at the financial year end.  

Resulting surpluses and deficits are included in financing costs and 
are separately identified. Goodwill is stated at cost less impairment losses and is reviewed for 

impairment on an annual basis.  Any impairment identified is 
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income Foreign subsidiaries and associates – translation
and is not reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for Once-off items in the statement of comprehensive income and 
the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating statement of cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and associates 
units is in accordance with the basis on which the businesses are expressed in currencies other than the South African Rand are 
managed and according to the differing risk and reward profiles.translated to South African Rand at the rates of exchange prevailing on 

the day of the transaction. All other items are translated at weighted 
average rates of exchange for the relevant reporting period. Assets Common control transactions
and liabilities of these undertakings are translated at closing rates of Acquisitions of subsidiaries which do not result in a change of control 
exchange at each reporting date. The difference that arise due to the of the subsidiary are accounted for as common control transactions. 
above translations is recognised in the statement of changes in equity The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the group's interest in the 
as a Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. For these purposes net carrying value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired 
assets include loans between group companies that form part of the entity, is carried as a non distributable reserve in the consolidated 
net investment, for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to results.
occur in the foreseeable future and is either denominated in the 
functional currency of the parent or the foreign entity. When a foreign 2.9 Provisions
operation is disposed of, any related exchange differences in equity Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive 
are recycled through the statement of comprehensive income as part obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that an 
of the gain or loss on disposal. outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a 
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity. 2.10 Revenue

Revenue is stated at invoice value of finished goods sold, excluding 
2.7 Taxation value added tax. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when 
Current taxation the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the 
Current taxation comprises taxation payable calculated on the basis of buyer, costs can be measured reliably and receipt of the future benefits 
the expected taxable income for the year, using the taxation rates is probable.  Other income earned by the group is recognised on the 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment of following basis:
taxation payable for previous years.

� Interest income is recognised as it accrues on the effective 
Deferred taxation interest method unless collectability is in doubt.
Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on 
temporary differences arising between the taxation bases of assets 

2.11 Employee Benefits
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 

Short-term employee benefitspurposes.  Currently substantively enacted taxation rates are used to 
The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the calculate deferred taxation.  Deferred taxation assets relating to 
period in which the employee renders the related service. The deductible temporary differences are only recognised to the extent that 
provisions for employees' entitlements to wages, salaries, annual and it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits, in the 
sick leave represent the amount which the group has a present form of reductions in the future taxable income, for the group.  
obligation to pay as a result of the employees' services provided to the Deferred taxation is charged to the statement of comprehensive 
reporting date.income, except to the extent that it relates to transactions recognised 

directly in equity. The effect on deferred taxation of any changes in 

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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Retirement benefits De-recognition
The group provides retirement benefits for employees by payments to Financial assets (or a portion thereof) are derecognised when the 
independent defined contribution funds and contributions are charged group realises the rights to the benefits specified in the contract, the 
against income as incurred. A financial review of the Ellies Pension rights expire or the group surrenders or otherwise loses control of the 
Fund is undertaken annually. contractual rights that comprise the financial asset. In de-recognition, 

the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and 
proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect fair value that 2.12 Financial Instruments
had been reported in equity are included in the statement of Initial recognition and measurement
comprehensive income.  Financial liabilities (or a portion thereof) are All financial instruments are recognised on the statement of financial 
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is position. Financial instruments are initially recognised when the group 
discharged, cancelled or expires. On de-recognition, the difference becomes party to the contractual terms of the instruments and are 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability, including related measured at fair value, which is generally the fair value of the 
unamortised costs, and amount paid for it are included in the consideration given (financial asset) or received (financial liability or 
statement of comprehensive income.equity instrument) for it. Financial liabilities and equity instruments are 

classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangement 
Set-offon initial recognition. Transaction costs are included in the initial 
Where a legally enforceable right to set-off exists for recognised measurement of the financial instrument except if it is classified as at 
financial assets and financial liabilities, and there is an intention to fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition these 
settle the liability and realise the asset simultaneously, or to settle on a instruments are measured as set out below.
net basis, all related financial effects are set-off.

Financial assets
2.13 Segment Reporting
Operating segments have been identified using the management Trade and other receivables
approach as required by IFRS 8, in terms of which segment Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less provision for 
classification is determined according to the basis on which doubtful debts. The provision for impairment is established when 
management and the board review the operating results. there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect 

all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 
Segment results include revenue and expenses directly attributable to Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are 
a segment and the relevant portion of enterprise revenue and identified.
expenses that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a segment, 
whether from external transactions or from transactions with other Cash and cash equivalents
group segments.Cash and cash equivalents are measured at their fair value. For the 

purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents 
Segment assets and liabilities comprise those assets and liabilities comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call, and investments in 
that are directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the money market instruments, net of bank overdrafts, all of which are 
segment on a reasonable basis.available for use by the group unless otherwise stated.

Financial liabilities

The group's principal financial liabilities are long-term and short-term 
Certain accounting policies have been identified as involving borrowings, accounts payable and bank overdrafts:
particularly complex or subjective judgements or assessments, as 
follows:Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
3.1 Residual values and useful lives of items of costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised 

property, plant and equipmentcost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of 
into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using 
assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary the effective interest method.  Borrowings are classified as current 
depending on a number of factors. In reassessing assets lives, factors 

liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer 
such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance 

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments 

date. consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of 
the asset and projected disposal values.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are measured initially at fair value, and are 3.2 Goodwill
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective Goodwill is tested for impairment at each reporting date. The 
interest rate method. recoverable amounts of cash-generating units to which a portion of 

goodwill relates, have been estimated based on value in use 
Bank overdrafts calculations. Value in use calculations have been based on an 
Refer to “Cash and cash equivalents” above. appropriate discount rate.

3. MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

for the year ended 30 April 2011
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued for the year ended 30 April 2011

3.3 Provisions
The warranty provision has been raised for future estimated warranty 3.6 Inventory impairments
claims based on past experience. Impairment of inventory is calculated on a line by line basis with 

reference to average consumption to identify slow moving, defective 
or obsolete items.3.4 Impairment of trade and other receivables

The group assesses its trade and other receivables for impairment at 
each reporting date. In determining whether any impairment should be 3.7 Deferred tax asset
recognised, the group makes judgements as to whether there is The group recognises the future tax benefit related to deferred income 
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary 
future cash flows from each receivable. differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the 

recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the group to 
make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable 3.5 Discounting of trade receivables and trade 

payables income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast 
cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws. To Normal trade credit terms in South Africa have been judged to be equal 
the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly to 60 days. Where trade receivables and payables are settled beyond 
from estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred tax the normal trade credit terms, the transaction is deemed to include a 
assets recorded at the reporting date could be impacted.financing arrangement. The resulting trade receivable or trade 

payable is discounted from the date of settlement to day 60 using an 
appropriate discount rate. The group discounts its trade receivables 
and trade payables using the borrowing rate the group could obtain 
from its commercial bankers for borrowing funds on similar terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Office 
equipment / 

furniture and 
fittings

R’000

TOTAL

R’000

Motor 
vehicles

R’000

Computer 
equipment

R’000

Land & 
buildings / 
leasehold 

improvements
R’000

Plant and 
equipment

R’000

1. Property, plant and equipment

GROUP:

COMPANY:

As at 30 April 2011:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying value

Movement summary
Carrying value at 30 April 2010
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Foreign translation
Carrying value at 30 April 2011

As at 30 April 2010:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying value

Movement summary
Carrying value at 30 April 2009
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Transfers between catagories
Foreign translation
Carrying value at 30 April 2010

47,398
(28,708)

18,690

18,501
5,617

-
(5,428)

-
18,690

41,780
(23,279)

18,501

17,480
8,252
(295)

(5,609)
(1,327)

-
18,501

17,605
(11,754)

5,851

6,571
2,278
(566)

(2,361)
(71)

5,851

17,325
(10,754)

6,571

6,299
3,195
(460)

(2,544)
162
(81)

6,571

14,617
(11,292)

3,325

2,276
2,787

(1)
(1,728)

(9)
3,325

11,927
(9,651)

2,276

2,250
1,192

(7)
(1,350)

203
(12)

2,276

16,394
(11,319)

5,075

4,128
2,721

(28)
(1,731)

(15)
5,075

13,828
(9,700)

4,128

3,788
1,073

(7)
(1,671)

963
(18)

4,128

45,666
(2,023)
43,643

1,583
43,100

-
(980)
(60)

43,643

2,668
(1,085)

1,583

1,566
833

-
(730)

(1)
(85)

1,583

141,680
(65,096)

76,584

33,059
56,503

(595)
(12,228)

(155)
76,584

87,528
(54,469)

33,059

31,383
14,545

(769)
(11,904)

-
(196)

33,059

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of R43,291,480 (2010: R2,295,118) is encumbered as security against certain interest bearing 
liabilities. (Refer note 14).
 A register of land and buildings is available for inspection at the registered office of the company.

The company has no property, plant and equipment.

for the year ended 30 April 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

2. Goodwill

3. Intangible assets

Cost
Accumulated impairments
Net carrying value

Arising on acquisition of companies / 
businesses of: 
Ellies Group of companies
Megatron Federal business
Closing net carrying value

218,304
(750)

217,554

52,608
164,946
217,554

218,304
(750)

217,554

52,608
164,946
217,554

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

Impairment review
In accordance with IAS 36 impairment of assets, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed annually for impairment, or 
more frequently if there is an indication that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of goodwill relating to all cash generating units has been determined on the basis of value in use calculations. All these cash 
generating units operate in the same economic environment for which the same key assumptions have been used. These calculations use cash flow 
projections based on financial projections, covering a five year period and a discount rate of 18.87% (2010: 18.79%) for all cash generating units. Cash 
flows beyond the five year period were extrapolated using a steady 4% (2010: 4%) nominal growth rate. Any changes in revenue or costs are based on 
past predictions and expectations of future changes in the market.

Total

R’000

Marketing 
related

R’000

Development 
costs

R’000

Customer 
related

R’000

As at 30 April 2011:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value

As at 30 April 2010:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value

Movement summary
Carrying value at 30 April 2009
Additions during the year
Amortisation for the year
Carrying value at 30 April 2010
Amortisation for the year
Carrying value at 30 April 2011

The remaining useful life of the intangibles are:

9,759
(9,759)

-

9,759
(8,814)

945

1,890
-

(945)
(945)
(945)

-

-

3,338
(1,002)

2,336

3,338
(668)
2,670

3,004
-

(334)
2,670
(334)
2,336

7 years

4,470
(342)
4,098

4,470
(149)
4,321

-
4,470
(149)
4,321
(223)
4,098

19 years

17,567
(11,133)

6,434

17,567
(9,631)

7,936

4,894
4,470

(1,428)
7,936

(1,502)
6,434

The company has no intangible assets.

GROUP:

COMPANY:
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for the year ended 30 April 2011

Ellies (Pty) Ltd
Archsat Investments (Gauteng) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
Elsat (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (SWD) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Properties (Pty) Ltd
In-toto Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Cape) (Pty) Ltd
Archsat Investments (Cape) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Natal) (Pty) Ltd
Archsat Investments (Natal) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Pietersburg) (Pty) Ltd
Archsat Investments (Pietersburg) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Nelspruit) (Pty) Ltd
Archsat Investments (Nelspruit) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics Border-Kei (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics East Cape (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Bloemfontein) (Pty) Ltd
ADRS Technologies (Pty) Ltd

** Amounts are less than R1 000

The investments have been consolidated in 
terms of the accounting policy on re-
organisation of entities within the group.

The aggregate amounts from subsidiaries 
included in the group results amounts to:
- Profits
- Losses

RSA
RSA

Namibia
Botswana
Botswana
Swaziland

RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA
RSA

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
51

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

-
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

318,773
5,120
9,288
2,228
2,228

- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **
- **

337,637

99,879
(3,185)
96,694

96,063
96,063
9,288
2,228
2,228

- **
- **

 
16,909
16,909
13,198
13,198
8,817
8,817
7,841
7,841
8,235

13,214
8,394
8,394

337,637

72,406
(9)

72,397

2010
R’000

2011
%

Country
of 

Incorporation 2011
R’000

2010
%

4. Investments in subsidiaries

5. Investment in associate

Ownership  Percentage

Ownership  Percentage

Shares at cost

Shares at cost

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

2011
%

2010
%

Country
of 

incorporation

GROUP:

SkyeVine (Pty) Ltd

Shares at cost
Loan receivable
Equity accounted losses
Share of loss from associate

** Amounts are less than R1 000

RSA 45 - - **

- **
1,570

(531)
1,039

-

-
-

-
-

COMPANY:

The aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and profits of the associate have not been shown, as the entity has just started trading. It was 
previously dormant and the current amounts are not significant.

The company holds the 45% (2010: -%) in SkyeVine at a cost of R450 (2010: Nil).

-
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The balance consists of:

Capital allowances
Provision for employee benefits
Prepaid expenses
Provisions for bad debts and other provisions against receivables
Lease obligations
Income received in advance
Intangible assets
Assessed losses
Other

Movement summary
Balance at the beginning of the year
Foreign translation
Temporary differences per statement of comprehensive income
Capital allowances
Provision for employee benefits
Prepaid expenses
Provisions for bad debts and other provisions against receivables
Lease obligations
Income received in advance
Intangible assets
Assessed losses
Other

Balance at the end of the year

Disclosed as:
Deferred taxation - non current asset
Deferred taxation - non current liability

(780)
3,461

-
1,359

245
3,073
(654)
1,065

27
7,796

5,610
(6)

2,192
(115)

633
14

(390)
(124)

728
358

1,061
27

7,796

7,942
(146)
7,796

(659)
2,828

(14)
1,749

369
2,345

(1,012)
4
-

5,610

3,082
(9)

2,537
248
930
72
47

345
514
358

-
23

5,610

5,610
-

5,610

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

6. Deferred taxation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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Raw materials
Merchandise
Work in progress
Goods in transit
Gross inventories
Impairment provision raised against inventories

Movement in impairment provision raised against 
inventories
Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment provisions raised
Impairment provisions utilised / reversed
Balance at the end of the year

48
355,831
10,728
20,591

387,198
(28,303)
358,895

23,435
7,645

(2,777)
28,303

1,572
310,744

7,619
1,311

321,246
(23,435)
297,811

26,416
2,371

(5,352)
23,435

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

7. Inventories

8. Trade and other receivables

Inventory up to a maximum of R50 million (2010: R50 million) have been encumbered to secure certain banking facilities.

Gross trade receivables
Provision for doubtful debts
Net trade receivables
Prepayments
Deposits
VAT
Other receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment provisions raised
Impairment provisions utilised
Balance at the end of the year

221,601
(6,651)

214,950
2,669

334
5,315
1,051

224,319

8,463
888

(2,700)
6,651

198,652
(8,463)

190,189
2,534

234
232
176

193,365

8,142
1,025
(704)
8,463

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Trade receivables have been encumbered to Standard Bank to secure certain banking facilities.
A reversionary cession of trade debtors has been given to Blue Strata Trading (Pty) Limited for credit facilities granted to the group.

Trade receivables are stated at cost less impairment provisions which normally approximate their fair value due to their short-term maturity.

Before accepting any new customer, the group performs credit checks utilising external credit bureaus and banks. Industry knowledge and 
visits to potential customer premises assist in the decision to accept a new customer and the setting of credit limits.

Credit limits are continuously monitored through payment history checks and industry information. 

Movement in impairment provision raised against receivables

for the year ended 30 April 2011
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COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

8. Trade and other receivables continued...

Maximum exposure to credit losses of trade 
and other receivables

Amounts 30 days overdue
Amounts 60 days overdue
Amounts 90 days and more overdue

221,650

25,033
11,016
15,385
51,434

190,831

25,804
9,805

11,576
47,185

-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

Basis of raising impairment provision against receivables

All trade and other receivables are continuously reviewed on an individual basis. When all reasonable measures have been taken, without success, in 
recovering a receivable amount and when reasonable doubt exists as to the recoverablility of any such individual receivable amount a corresponding 
provision for impairment is raised. Provisions for impairment raised against receivables are reversed when a receivable amount is either written off as 
bad debt, or when an amount previously provided against is received.

Related credit exposure and enhancements

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

Ellies (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics East Cape (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Natal) (Pty) Ltd
Ellies Electronics (Pietersburg) (Pty) Ltd

182,210
-
-
-

182,210

168,197
949
514
70

169,730

These amounts are unsecured, interest free, with no fixed terms of repayment

9. Loans to subsidiaries

10. Bank and cash balances

Petty cash
Bank accounts
CFC bank accounts
Bank overdrafts

Disclosed as:
Current asset
Current liability

267
8,641

62,700
(46,256)

25,352

71,608
(46,256)

25,352

150
11,942
6,127

(31,472)
(13,253)

18,219
(31,472)
(13,253)

-
189

-
-

189

189
-

189

-
690

-
-

690

690
-

690

Banking facilities
The group has overdraft and other short-term bank facilities of R105 million (2010: R75 million). At year-end R46.2 million (2010: R43.5 million) of these 
facilities were unutilised.
The banking facilities of the company and its subsidiaries are secured as follows:

- general notarial bond over all movable assets R50 million (2010: R50 million);
- cession of trade and other receivables.

(Refer to notes 7 and 8 for full details),

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

Authorised

800,000,000 (2010: 800,000,000) of R0.00001 each

Issued

303,505,691 (2010: 303,505,691) of R0.00001 each

The following changes to the issued share capital took place
during the year:

Issued at the beginning of the year

Shares issued during rights offer

Issued at the end of the year

Share premium on issued ordinary shares

Issue expenses set off against share premium

Arising from common control transactions

Foreign currency translation reserve

Movement summary for Foreign currency translation reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Translation of foreign entity

Balance at the end of the year

The unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

8

3

2011

# Shares

303,505,691

-

303,505,691

510,641

(9,150)

501,491

(178,194)

(681)

(178,875)

(473)

(208)

(681)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(178,194)

(473)

(178,667)

(141)

(332)

(473)

8

3

2010

# Shares

270,674,399

32,831,292

303,505,691

510,641

(9,150)

501,491

8

3

2011

# Shares

303,505,691

-

303,505,691

510,641

(9,150)

501,491

8

3

2010

# Shares

270,674,399

32,831,292

303,505,691

510,641

(9,150)

501,491

11. Share capital

12. Share premium

13. Non-distributable reserves

for the year ended 30 April 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Repayment terms (discounted)
1 Year

2 - 5 Years

The instalment sale liabilities bear interest at various rates linked to prime and are  currently between 9.75% and 12% p.a. (2010: 9.75% and 12% p.a.) 
and are repayable in monthly instalments of R92,939 (2010: R92,939). These liabilities are secured by plant and equipment with a carrying value of 
R1,938,027 (2010: R2,295,118).

The term loan bears interest at JIBAR 90 + 4% (2010: JIBAR 90 + 4%) and is repayable in quarterly instalments of R5,2 million (2010: R5,2 million).

The property term loan comprises two facilities:

 - R20m at JIBAR 90 + 3% and is repayable in quarterly instalments of R1.2 million.

 - R20m at JIBAR 90 + 3.25% and interest, amounting to R0.4m, is repayable quarterly and the capital is repayable on 31 March 2016.

The property term loan is secured by plant and equipment with a carrying value of R41,353,453 (2010: R-).

All interest bearing liabilities are denominated in South African Rand.

The directors consider the carrying amount of interest bearing liabilities to approximate their fair value.

These loans were interest free. Imputed interest was calculated on these loans at rates linked to prime. 
The directors considered the carrying amount of vendor loans to approximate their fair value.

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables to approximate their fair value.

29,672

43,913

73,585

23,381

33,625

57,006

-

-

-

-

-

-

Current portion – - 13,60713,607

15. Vendor loans

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Employee benefits
VAT
Lease liability (straight lining)
Income received in advance
Other payables

142,235
8,340

21,915
1,488

875
68,384

1,945
245,182

-
-

-

-

-

48

48

-
-

-

-

-

212

212

81,707
6,356

19,118
7,294
1,318

29,885
1,668

147,346

16. Trade and other payables

Non-current portion
Installment sale liabilities
Term loan
Property term loan

Current portion
Installment sale liabilities
Term loan
Property term loan

43,913
370

6,754
36,789

29,672
567

25,608
3,497

73,585

33,625
952

32,673
-

23,381
749

22,632
-

57,006

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-

14. Interest bearing liabilities

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000
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Foreign exchange (losses) / profits

Depreciation
 Plant and Equipment 
 Motor vehicles 
 Computer equipment 
 Office equipment / Furniture and fittings 
 Land and buildings / Leasehold improvements 

Amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating lease and rental charges
 Premises 
 Other 

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Dividends received

Employee costs
 Directors 
 Other staff 

Audit fees
Audit fees - current year
Audit fees - prior year
Other services

(492)

 5,428 
 2,361 
 1,728 
 1,731 

 980 
12,228

1,502

 21,056 
 68 

21,124

301

-

 12,658 
 216,567 
229,225

2,860
12

357
3,229

3,211

 5,609 
 2,544 
 1,350 
 1,671 

 730 
11,904

1,428

 19,559 
 552 

20,111

858

-

 10,180 
 179,191 
189,371

2,480
534
181

3,195

-

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
-

-

 - 
 - 
-

-

42,688

 - 
 - 
-

-
-
-
-

-

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
-

-

 - 
 - 
-

-

-

 - 
 - 
-

-
-
-
-

Profit from operations is stated after taking the following items into account:

18. Profit from operations

Funds and deposits with banks 
Interest received from related parties
Interest received from taxation authorities
Other

499
-
6

43
548

173
6

737
32

948

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

19. Interest received

for the year ended 30 April 2011

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

17. Provisions

Provision for warranty
Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision movement
Balance at the end of the year

1,493

785

2,258

1,275
218

1,493

-

-

-

-

-

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

South African normal taxation
Current year
Prior year over provision

Deferred taxation
Current year

Secondary tax on Company's (STC)

Reconciliation of rate of taxation

South African normal taxation rate

Disallowable expenses / (exempt income)
Tax losses
Prior year adjustments
Foreign taxes
Capital gains
Secondary tax on Company's (STC)
Equity accounted losses
Other

Effective taxation rate

39,734
(16)

(2,192)

1,518
39,044

%

28.00

0.15
(0.02)
(0.01)
(0.08)

-
1.14
0.11
0.01

29.30

32,691
(791)

(2,537)

-
29,363

%

28.00

2.38
(0.02)
(1.12)

-
0.03

-
-
-

29.27

17
-

-

1,518
1,535

%

28.00

(27.96)
-
-
-
-

3.59
-
-

3.63

9
-

-

-
9

%

28.00

(28.53)
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(0.53)

21. Taxation

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

20. Interest paid

Bank overdraft
Long term liabilities
Deemed interest incurred on vendor loans
Interest paid to related parties
Interest paid to taxation authorities
 Other 

5,384
6,878

481
-

23
53

12,189

4,487
6,599
8,356

182
85
10

19,719

-
-

1,785
-
-
-

1,785

-
-

481
-
-
-

481
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Basic earnings per share (cents)
Headline earnings per share (cents)
Core headline earnings per share (cents)
Diluted earnings per share (cents)
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents)
Diluted Core headline earnings per share (cents)

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share for the group is based
on the following:
 - Basic earnings (R000's)
 - Headline earnings (R000's)
 - Core headline earnings (R000's)
 - Weighted average ordinary number of shares in issue
 - Fully diluted ordinary number of shares
 - Number of shares in issue at year end

Reconciliation of headline and core headline earnings:
Profit for the year
Adjusted for:
   Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

- Gross
- Tax

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
Adjusted for:
Amortisation of intangibles
- Gross
- Tax

Transactional costs expensed (Failed acquisition)
IFRS implied interest on vendor liabilities

Core headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders

               31.49 
               31.42 
               32.09 
               31.49 
               31.42 
               32.09 

             95,573 
             95,356 
             97,391 
     303,505,691 
     303,505,691 
     303,505,691 

             95,573 

                (217) 
                (301) 
                   84 

 
             95,356 

               1,081 
               1,502 
                (421) 

                  473 
                  481 

             97,391 

               26.19 
               25.96 
               29.43 
               23.38 
               23.18 
               26.27 

             70,967 
             70,349 
             79,733 
    270,944,245 

303,505,691
 303,505,691     

              70,967 

                 (618) 
                 (858) 
                   240 

 
              70,349 

                1,028 
                1,428 
                 (400) 

                     -   
                8,356 

              79,733 

22. Earnings per share

Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjusted for:
 - Interest received
 - Interest paid
 - Dividends received
 - Depreciation
 - Amortisation of intangibles
 - Foreign currency translation reserve
 - Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
 - Equity accounted losses
 - Increase in provisions

Changes in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease in other current receivables
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

133,253 

(548) 
12,819 

-
12,228
1,502

(47)
(301)

531
765

160,202
5,798

(61,084)
(30,954)

-
97,836

166 000

100,330

(948)
19,719

 -
11,904
1,428
(128)
(858)

-
218

131,665
(29,860)
(10,520)
(37,231)

898
16,993

101,805 

42,271 

-
481

(42,687)
-
-
-
-
-
-

65
(164)

-
-
- 

(164)
(99) 

(1,752) 

-
1,785

 -
-
-
-
-
-
-

33
165

-
-
- 

165
198 

23. Cash generated from / (utilised by) operations

for the year ended 30 April 2011

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000
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Total interest paid (Refer to note 20)
Imputed interest on vendor loans

Balance at beginning of year
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income
Balance at end of year

Balance at beginning of year
Dividends declared during the year
Balance owing at end of year

Capital commitments
There are no capital commitments.

Operating leases commitments
 Computer and office equipment 
 Premises 

These commitments accrue in the following periods:
 - Due within one year
 - Due within year two to five
 - Due after five years

All contributions on behalf of employees are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they are made.  The company has no liability towards 
any pension or provident fund, apart from normal recurring monthly contributions deducted from employees to be paid to relevant funds.

12,819
(481)

12,338

5,377
41,236

(681)
45,932

-
15,176

(188)
14,988

1,067
36,632
36,799

14,334
16,595
5,870

36,799

109
48,226
48,335

11,687
31,638
5,010

48,335

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

481
(481)

-

6
1,535

(8)
1,533

-
15,176

(188)
14,988

19,719
(8,356)
11,363

1,600
31,899
(5,377)
28,122

-
-
-
-

1,785
(1,785)

-

3
9

(6)
6

-
-
-
-

24. Interest paid (in cash)

25. Taxation paid

26. Dividends paid

27. Commitments

28. Retirement benefits

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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29. Related party information

Related parties: Raylad Distributors CC - Common directors / members
Abrina 2950 (Pty) Ltd - Common directors RZT Zelpy 4534 (Pty) Ltd - Common directors
Logos Industries (Pty) Ltd - Common directors Savilas Properties (Pty) Ltd - Common directors
Java Capital (Pty) Ltd - Common directors Tamryn Manor (Pty) Ltd - Common directors
JQ Prosper CC - Common directors / members Vegtu Investments (Pty) Ltd - Common directors
Kingsworthy Road Investments CC - Common directors / members Wilshire and Wilshire CC - Common directors / members
Megatron Properties (Pty) Ltd - Common directors Wilshire Property Trust - Common directors / trustees & beneficiaries
Otto Family Investments (Pty) Ltd - Common directors ZAH Properties (Pty) Ltd - Close family member

GROUP
Related parties include transactions with directors and key management or entities where directors or key management have an interest. During the 
year, the group entered into various transactions with related parties on an arms length basis. The related parties are:

COMPANY
Related parties include the subsidiary companies, shareholders and 
directors. During the year, the company entered into various transactions 
with related parties on an arms length basis.

Related parties transactions:

Sales
Purchases 
Rent paid 
Interest paid
Operating expenses
Listing and legal expenses
Listing and legal expenses (included as part of the share premium)
Acquisitions of land and buildings

Related parties balances:
Logos Industries (Pty) Ltd:
-  gross amount included in accounts receivable
- net amount included in accounts receivable, after impairments
Savilas Properties (Pty) Ltd - included in accounts receivable
Raylad Distributors CC - included in accounts payable
Kingsworthy Road Investments CC - included in accounts payable

There were no other material balances at year end.

Related parties:

Ellies (Pty) Limited - Common directors / subsidiary
Subsidiaries of the company are listed in note 4.
Associates of the company are listed in note 5.
Java Capital (Pty) Ltd - Common directors
Otto Family Investments (Pty) Ltd - Common directors

Related parties transactions:
Administration fees
Operating expenses
Listing and legal expenses (included as part of the share premium)

Related parties balances:
All related party balances at year end are disclosed in note 9.

490
131

-

475
120

2,350

3,371
2,608
5,393

49
131
221

-
13,700

990
990
182

-
-

5,717
8,587
8,053

182
151
87

2,350
-

5,222
3,292

166
242

1,212 

for the year ended 30 April 2011

COMPANY
2010

R’000

GROUP
2011

R’000

COMPANY
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

M Goodford, a director of Ellies Holdings, is a shareholder of Intoto Technology Investments, the Group's 49% partner in In-toto Solutions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

                     -   

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

               
43,913 

             43,913 
                     -   

             
228,636                
29,672 

                     -   
           152,520 
                     -   
                     -   

                  188 
             46,256 

272,549 

                     -   

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

                     -   

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

                 236 
                     -

48
188

-

236

2010

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2010

R’000

GROUP:

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill and other intangible assets
Investment in associate
Deferred taxation

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Taxation receivable
Bank and cash balances

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital and premium
Non-distributable reserves
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Vendor loans payable
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Taxation payable
Shareholders for dividend
Bank overdrafts

Total equity and liabilities

COMPANY:

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other current assets
Bank and cash balances

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital and premium
Retained income / (losses)

Current liabilities
Vendor loans payable
Trade and other payables
Shareholders for dividend
Taxation payable

Total equity and liabilities

               1,039 
                    -   
                    -   

               1,039 
                    -   

           287,943 
                    -   

           216,335 
                    -   

             71,608 

           288,982 

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

           182,399 
           182,210 
                  189 

           182,399 

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

            33,625 
            33,625 

                   -   

          166,945 
            23,380 
            13,607 
            98,486 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

            31,472 

          200,570 

                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

            13,819 
            13,607 
                 212 

                   -   
                   -   

            13,819 

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

           208,818 
                    -   

           190,599 
                    -   

             18,219 

           208,818 

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

           170,420 
           169,730 
                  690 

           170,420 

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   
                    -   

                    -   

30. Analysis of assets and liabilities by financial 
instrument classification

Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities at

amortised costs



          308,514 
            76,584 
          223,988 

                   -   
              7,942 

          367,297 
          358,895 
              7,984 
                418 
                   -   

          675,811 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                146 
                   -   

                146 

            96,019 
                   -   
                   -   

            92,662 
              2,258 
              1,099 

                   -   
                   -   

            96,165 

          337,637 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

          337,637 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                    8 
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                    8 

                    8 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

596,079
501,494

(178,875)
274,824
(1,364)

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

596,079

                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   

           519,792 
           501,494 

18,298

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

           519,792 

          309,553 
            76,584 
          223,988 
              1,039 
              7,942 

          655,240 
          358,895 
          224,319 
                 418 
            71,608 

          964,793 

          596,079 
          501,494 

(178,875)
274,824
(1,364)

            44,059 
            43,913 
                 146 

          324,655 
            29,672 

                   -   
          245,182 
              2,258 
              1,099 
                 188 
            46,256 

          964,793 

          337,637 

          182,399 
          182,210 
                 189 

          520,036 

          519,792 
          501,494 

18,298

                 244 
                   -   

                  48 
                 188 
                    8 

          520,036 

2010

R’000

2010

R’000

2010

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

           264,159 
            33,059 
           225,490 

                   -   
              5,610 

           301,211 
           297,811 
              2,766 
                 634 

                   -   

           565,370 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

            56,364 
                   -   
                   -   

            48,860
              1,493 
              6,011 

                   -   
                   -   

            56,364 

           337,637 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

           337,637 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                    6 
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                    6 

                    6 

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   

           517,254 
           501,494 

(178,667)
194,427

                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

           517,254

                   -   

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

                   -   

           494,232 
           501,494 

(7,262)

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

           494,232  

           264,159 
             33,059 
           225,490 

                   -   
              5,610 

           510,029 
           297,811 
           193,365 
                 634 
             18,219 

           774,188 

           517,254 
           501,494 

(178,667)
194,427

                   -   

             33,625 
             33,625 

                   -   

           223,309 
             23,380 
             13,607 
           147,346 
              1,493 
              6,011 

                   -   
             31,472 

           774,188 

           337,637 

           170,420 
           169,730 
                 690 

           508,057 

           494,232 
           501,494 

(7,262)

             13,825 
             13,607 
                 212 

                   -   
                     6 

           508,057 

Non-financial
instruments Equity Total
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The group’s operations expose it to a number of financial risks. A risk management programme has been established to protect the group against the 
potential adverse effects of these financial risks.

31.1 Currency risk management
The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies and therefore has exposure to exchange fluctuations. The group 
manages exchange rate exposures through its currency holdings (CFC accounts) and by making cost adjustments in terms of the agreements 
with clients .

31.2  Interest risk management
The group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows and places funds. This risk is managed by utilising an appropriate mix between fixed and 
floating rate borrowings and placing funds on short-term deposit. It is the group's policy not to hedge interest rate exposure.

31.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet a financial commitment in any location or currency. The cash requirements of the 
group are managed according to its needs from time to time. The company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and 
ensuring that adequate cash resources and unutilised borrowing facilities are maintained.

31. Financial risk management

Carrying value
of financial 

liabilities
R’000

No
Terms
R’000

< 6
Months

R’000

6 - 12
Months

R’000

> 12
Months

R’000

Total
undiscounted

value of financial
liabilities

R’000

GROUP:

 30 April 2011:

Non current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

Current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Trade and other payables
Shareholders for dividend
Bank overdrafts

30 April 2010:

Non current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

Current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Vendor loans payable
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

COMPANY:

 30 April 2011:

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Shareholders for dividends

30 April 2010:

Current liabilities
Vendor loans payable
Trade and other payables

             43,913 

             29,672 
           152,520 
                  188 
             46,256 
           272,549 

             33,625 

             23,380 
             13,607 
             98,486 
             31,472 
           200,570 

                   48 
                  188 
                  236 

             
13,607 

                  212 
             13,819 

                     -   

                     -   
                     -   

                   188 
              46,256 
              46,444 

                     -   

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

              31,472 
              31,472 

                     -   
                   188 
                   188 

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

                      -   

               17,500 
             152,520 

                      -   
                      -   

            170,020 

                      -   

               14,253 
               14,089 
               98,486 

                      -   
            126,828 

                      48 
                      -   

                      48 

               14,089 
                    212 
               14,301 

                      -   

               17,504 
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               17,504 

                      -   

               14,532 
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               14,532 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               54,206 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               54,206 

               35,960 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               35,960 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

               54,206 

               35,003 
             152,520 
                   188 
               46,256 
             288,173 

               35,960 

               28,785 
               14,089 
               98,486 
               31,472 
             208,792 

                     48 
                   188 
                   236 

               14,089 
                   212 
               14,301 

Liquidity risk -
maturity analysis of
financial liabilities

Expected settlement period of financial liabilities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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31.4 Capital risk management
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other sakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, as disclosed in notes 13 and 14, cash and cash equivalents 
as disclosed in note  9, and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the debt:equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current 
borrowings’ as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is represented in the statement of 
financial position. 
There are no externally imposed capital requirements. There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for 
capital maintenance or externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year.

The improvement in the groups gearing is as a result of the improved cash position. Much of this cash improvement is due to additional creditor 
financing and significant cash receipts against contract orders placed prior to year end, with a significant portion being utilised towards the 
fulfilment of these contract orders.

Total borrowings
Interest bearing liabilities
Vendor loans payable

(Less) / add: Cash and cash equivalents (net borrowings)
Net debt
Total equity
Total capital

Debt: equity ratio

            
 73,585 

                    -   
             73,585 

(25,352)
             48,233 
           596,079 
           644,312 

 0.08 : 1 

57,005 
13,607 
70,612 
13,253 
83,865 

517,254 
601,119 

 0.14 : 1 

GROUP
2011

R’000

GROUP
2010

R’000

The debt : equity ratios are as follows:
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Amount 
subject to 

risk
R’000

Amount 
subject to 

risk
R’000

Carrying 
Value

R’000

Rand
Depreciation

R’000

Rand
Decrease

R’000

Rand
Appreciation

R’000

Rand
Increase

R’000

31.5 Sensitivity analysis

GROUP:

 30 April 2011:

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash balances

Impact of financial assets on:
– profit before taxation

– profit after taxation

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Impact of financial liabilities on:
– profit before taxation

– profit after taxation

Overall impact on profit after taxation

 30 April 2010:

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash balances

Impact of financial assets on:
– profit before taxation

– profit after taxation

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Vendor loans payable
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Impact of financial liabilities on:
– profit before taxation

– profit after taxation

Overall impact on profit after taxation

COMPANY:

224,319 
71,608 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 (73,585)
(245,182
(46,256)

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 193,365 
 18,219 

 
 
 

   
 

(57,005)
(13,607)

(147,346)
(31,472)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(150)
(1,242)

(1,392)

(1,002)

-
263

-

263

189

(813)

(227)
(124)

(351)

(253)

-
-

190
-

190

137

(116)

150
1,242

1,392

1,002

-
(263)

-

(263)

(189)

813

227
124

351

253

-
-

(190)
-

(190)

(137)

116

-
8,641

(73,585)
-

(46,256)

150
18,070

(57,005)
-
-

(31,472)

-
173

173

124

(1,472)
-

(925)

(2,397)

(1,726)

(1,601)

3
361

364

262

(1,140)
-
-

(629)

(1,769)

(1,274)

(1,012)

-
(173)

(173)

(124)

1,472
-

925

2,397

1,726

1,601

(3)
(361)

(364)

(262)

1,140
-
-

629

1 769

1 274

1 012

 
 

 
 7,481 

 62,084 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

      -   
(13,142)

 -   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 11,348 
 6,127 

 
 
 

 
  

-   
-   

(9,482)
-   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Foreign exchange risk
Profit/(loss) should the Rand
exchange rate change by 2%

Interest rate risk
Profit/(loss) should the 

interest rate change by 2%

No company sensitivity analysis is presented as there were no balances exposed to foreign exchange risk and the only interest rate risk would relate to 
bank and call deposits of R189,000 (2010: R690,000) at year-end, on which the after tax impact on profit or loss would be R4,000 (2010: R10,000) should 
the interest rate change by 2% (2010: 2%).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
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2010

R’000

2010

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2011

R’000

2010

R’000

2010

R’000

2010

R’000

2010

R’000

32. Segmental Analysis

Revenue

Segment assets

Depreciation & amortisation

Segment liabilities

Profit from operations

Capital expenditure

Segments

Wholesale distribution of consumer
      goods and services
Infrastructural electrification
Property
Other
Holding company / consolidation

Group accounts

Interest received
Interest paid
- Property
- Other

Taxation

Profit for the year after tax

Segments

Wholesale distribution of consumer
      goods and services
Infrastructural electrification
Property
Other
Holding company / consolidation

Cash and cash equivalents / Bank 
overdrafts

Total

1,095,946
216,540

3,131
3,569

(3,131)
1,316,055

562,594
285,043
42,082
3,467

-
893,185

71,608

964,793

478,316
276,901

-
-

753
755,970

18,219

774,189

225,246
52,951
41,636
2,381

245
322,458

46,256

368,714

177,709
47,646

-
-

108
225,463

31,472

256,935

10,395
4,729

41,353
26

-
56,503

9,373
5,171

-
-
-

14,544

985,311
171,167

-
-
-

1,156,478

10,251
3,476

-
4
-

13,731

9,681
3,651

-
-
-

13,332

124,772
22,821
2,646

(4,289)
(426)

145,524

548
(12,819)
(1,682)

(11,137)

(39,044)

94,209

100,627
18,916

-
-

(442)
119,101

948
(19,719)

-
(19,719)

(29,363)

70,967
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2011

R’000

2010

R’000

33. Guarantees

 - Unlimited suretyship given by Ellies Holdings Limited to Blue Strata Trading (Pty) Limited, a supplier, for facilities of R30 million (2010: R30 million).

- Lombards Insurance Company Limited have issued various "Performance Guarantees" and "Bid Security Guarantees" as follows:
* Lesotho Maloti
* South African Rands
* Australian Dollars
* US Dollars

All these "Performance Guarantees" and "Bid Security Guarantees" expire within the next 12 months.
The directors do not believe any exposure to loss is likely.

- Standard Bank Limited have issued the following Guarantees on behalf of the group:
* Sasol Oil (Pty) Limited
 *Property purchase in the Nelspruit region
* Various relating to Infrastructural electrification division
* Intelsat New Dawn (US $) for SkyeVine (Pty) Limited

-
2,336

749
7,663

200
-

5,989
$319

645
1,273

-
41

200
6,750

-
-

GROUP
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%
of

Total

2010

Number
of 

holders

2011

Number
of

shares

2011

%
of

Total

2010

1 - 1,000 shares
1,001 - 10,000 shares

10,001 - 100,000 shares
100,001 - 1,000,000 shares

Over 1,000,001 shares

Distribution of shareholders

Retail Shareholders 
 Trusts 
 Collective Investment Schemes 
 Private Companies 
 Custodians 
 Nominees 
 Pension Funds 
 Assurance Companies 
 Investment Partnerships 
 Hedge Funds 
 Close Corporations 
 Public Companies 
 Foundations & Charitable Funds 
 Managed Funds 
 Stockbrokers 

Shareholder Type

Non-Public Shareholders
Directors and Associates (Direct Holding)
Directors and Associates (Indirect Holding)
Public Shareholders

ER Salkow
Oryx Investment Management (Pty) Ltd
RE Otto
DE Otto

Share Performance
Opening price 03 May 2010
Closing price 29 April 2011
Closing High for the year
Closing Low for the year

Number of shares in issue
Volume traded during period
Ratio of volume traded to shares issued (%)

Shareholder diary
Financial year end
Annual report posted 
Annual General Meeting
Announcement of interim results
Announcement of annual results

R 1.95
R 1.93
R 2.35
R 1.42

303 505 691
76 537 880

25.22%

30 April
October 2011

23 November 2011
January 2012

July 2012

83,083,658

28,361,499
27,911,499

139,356,656

85,703,558
31,096,428
28,361,499
28,361,499

173,522,984

27.37%

9.34%
9.20%

45.91%

28.24%
10.25%
9.34%
9.34%

57.17%

According to the register of members of the company, the only shareholders registered as holding five percent or more of the company's shares, were 
the following:

203
710
499
99
38

1,549

1,327
91
12
33
6
5
2
3

24
2

27
1
6
8
2

1,549

18
13
5

1,531
1,549

13.11%
45.84%
32.21%
6.39%
2.45%

100.00%

85.67%
5.87%
0.77%
2.13%
0.39%
0.32%
0.13%
0.19%
1.55%
0.13%
1.74%
0.06%
0.39%
0.52%
0.13%

100.00%

1.16%
0.84%
0.32%

98.84%
100.00%

115,948
3,724,717

17,074,575
31,017,882

251,572,569
303,505,691

213,881,292
20,821,289
18,869,846
18,210,039
13,567,737
7,439,333
4,438,977
2,096,474
1,533,324
1,000,000

779,832
300,000
376,042
175,290
16,216

303,505,691

138,514,350
121,033,529
17,480,821

164,991,341
303,505,691

0.04%
1.23%
5.63%

10.22%
82.89%

100.00%

70.47%
6.86%
6.22%
6.00%
4.47%
2.45%
1.46%
0.69%
0.51%
0.33%
0.26%
0.10%
0.12%
0.06%
0.01%

100.00%

45.64%
39.88%
5.76%

54.36%
100.00%

 Shareholders spread of shareholdings extracted from the register of ordinary shareholders at 30 April 2011:

Number of shares Percentage Held

Shareholder spread
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders 
of Ellies Holdings Limited (“Ellies” or “the company”) will be held at 94 
Eloff Street Ext, Village Deep, Johannesburg 2001 on Wednesday, 23 
November 2011 at 12:00pm for the following purposes:

1. To consider the annual financial statements for the financial year 
ended 30 April 2011; 

2. To transact such other business as may be transacted at an Annual 
General Meeting of a company including the re-appointment of the 
auditors, members of the audit and risk committee and the re-
election of retiring directors; and

3. To consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, the special and ordinary resolutions set out below.

The record date for determining which shareholders are entitled to:
i. receive notice of the Annual General Meeting is Thursday, 20 

October 2011 and
ii. participate in and vote at the Annual General Meeting is Friday, 18 

November 2011, in terms of section 62(3)(a), as read with section 
59 of the South African Companies Act, (Act 71 of 2008) as 
amended (the “Act”):

“Resolved that the directors be authorised by way of a general authority 
to approve the repurchase by the company or its subsidiaries of shares 
of the company on such terms and conditions and in such amounts that 
the directors of the company may determine subject to the company's 
Memorandum of Incorporation (previously Articles and Association) 
(“MOI”), the JSE Limited (“JSE”) Listings Requirements and the Act on 
the following basis:
1. repurchases of shares must be effected through the order book 

operated by the JSE trading system, and done without any prior 
understanding or arrangement between the company and the 
counter-party;

2. at any point in time, the company may only appoint one agent to 
effect repurchases on its behalf;

3. the company (or any subsidiary) must be authorised thereto by its 
MOI;

4. the number of shares which may be acquired pursuant to this 
authority in any financial year (which commenced 1 May 2011) 
may not in the aggregate exceed 20% (twenty percent) (or 10% 
(ten percent) where such acquisitions are effected by a subsidiary) 
of the company's share capital as at the date of this notice of 
Annual General Meeting;

5. repurchases of shares may not be made at a price more than 10% 
(ten percent) above the weighted average of the market value on 
the JSE of the shares in question for the five business days 
immediately preceding the repurchase;

6. repurchases may not take place during a prohibited period (as 
defined in paragraph 3.67 of the JSE Listings Requirements) 
unless a repurchase programme (where the dates and quantities 
of shares to be repurchased during the prohibited period are fixed) 
is in place and full details thereof announced on SENS prior to 
commencement of the prohibited period;

7. after the company has acquired shares which constitute, on a 
cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the number of shares in 
issue (at the time that authority from shareholders for the 
repurchase is granted), the company shall publish an 
announcement to such effect, or any other announcements that 
may be required in such regard in terms of the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE which may be applicable from time to 
time; 

Special resolution number 1: Share repurchases

8. the company's sponsor shall confirm the adequacy of the 
company's working capital for purposes of undertaking the 
repurchase of shares in writing to the JSE prior to the company 
entering the market to proceed with the repurchase; and 

9. this general authority shall be valid until the next Annual General 
Meeting of the company provided that it shall not extend beyond 
15 months from the date of passing of this special resolution.”

In accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE, the directors 
record that:

Although there is no immediate intention to effect a repurchase of 
securities of the company, the directors would utilise the general 
authority to repurchase securities as and when suitable opportunities 
present themselves, which opportunities may require expeditious and 
immediate action.

The directors undertake that, after considering the maximum number of 
securities which may be repurchased and the price at which the 
repurchases may take place pursuant to the buyback general authority, 
for a period of 12 months after the date of notice of this Annual General 
Meeting:
� the company and the group will be able to pay their debts in the 

ordinary course of business;
� the consolidated assets of the company and of the group fairly 

valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards will exceed the consolidated liabilities of the company 
and of the group; and

� the working capital, share capital and reserves of the company 
and of the group will be adequate for the purposes of the business 
of the company and its subsidiaries.

The following additional information, some of which may appear 
elsewhere in the annual report of which this notice forms part, is provided 
in terms of paragraph 11.26 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE for 
purposes of this general authority:

� Directors and management – pages 11 and 12

� Major shareholders – page 48

� Directors' interests in ordinary shares – pages 17 and 18

� Share capital of the company – pages 16 and 34

Litigation statement
The directors, whose names appear on page 11 of the annual report of 
which this notice forms part, are not aware of any legal or arbitration 
proceedings, including proceedings that are pending or threatened, that 
may have or have had in the recent past (being at least the previous 12 
(twelve) months) a material effect on the group's financial position.

Directors' responsibility statement
Directors, whose names appear on page 11 of the annual report, 
collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of 
the information pertaining to this special resolution and certify that, to the 
best of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been 
omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that 
all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and 
that the special resolution contains all information required in terms of 
the Listings Requirements of the JSE.

Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the annual report, 
there have been no material changes in the affairs or financial position of 
the company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the audit 
report for the year ended 30 April 2011 and up to the date of this notice.

ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

(Registration number: 2007/007084/06)

JSE CODE: ELI

ISIN: ZAE000103081
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Reasons for and effects of special resolution 1
The reason for Special Resolution 1 is to afford directors of the company 
or a subsidiary of the company general authority to effect a repurchase of 
the company's shares on the JSE.  The effect of the resolution will be that 
the directors will have the authority, subject to the Rules and 
Requirements of the JSE, to effect acquisitions of the company's shares 
on the JSE.

“Resolved that the fees payable to the non-executive directors for the 
financial year ending 30 April 2012, as set out hereunder, be and are 
hereby authorised, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2008 and that the Company may continue to pay directors' fees at 
the annual rates specified below for the period from 30 April 2012 until 
the Company's 2012 AGM.
Directors' fees for the financial year ending 30 April 2012:
� Lead independent director R300,000
� Other non-executive directors:

� annual base fee R190,000
� chairperson of a sub-committee, an additional R  35,000
� participation and membership of a

sub-committee, an additional R  25,000

Reason for special resolution 2
The Companies Act, 2008 requires shareholder approval of directors' 
fees prior to payment of such fees.

In terms of the Companies Act, 2008, 75% of the votes cast by 
shareholders present or represented by proxy at this meeting must be 
cast in favour of this resolution in order for it to be adopted.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the 
following special resolution:

“Resolved that, to the extent required by the Companies Act, the Board 
of directors of the company may, subject to compliance with the 
requirements of the company's Memorandum of Incorporation, the 
Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, each as presently 
constituted and as amended from time to time, authorise the company to 
provide direct or indirect financial assistance in terms of section 45 of the 
Companies Act by way of loans, guarantees, the provision of security or 
otherwise, to any of its present or future subsidiaries and/or any other 
company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-related (as 
defined in the Companies Act) to the company for any purpose or in 
connection with any matter, such authority to endure until the Annual 
General Meeting of the company to be held in 2012.”

Reason for and effects of Special Resolution Number 3
The company, when the need previously arose, had to provide loans to 
and guarantee loans or other obligations of subsidiaries and was not 
precluded from doing so in terms of its Articles of Association or in terms 
of the Companies Act, 61 of 1973, as amended. The company would like 
the ability to continue to provide financial assistance, if necessary, also in 
other circumstances, in accordance with section 45 of the Companies 
Act. This authority is necessary for the company to continue to provide 
financial assistance in appropriate circumstances. Under the 
Companies Act, the company will, however, require the special 
resolution referred to above to be adopted, provided that the Board of 
directors of the company be satisfied that the terms under which the 
financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and reasonable to 
the company and, immediately after providing the financial assistance, 
the company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test contemplated 
in the Companies Act. In the circumstances and in order to, inter alia, 
ensure that the company's subsidiaries and other related and inter-
related companies and corporations have access to financing and/or 
financial backing from the company (as opposed to banks), it is 
necessary to obtain the approval of shareholders, as set out in special 
resolution number 3. 

Special resolution number 2: Approval of fees payable 
to non-executive directors: 2011/2012

Special resolution number 3: Financial Assistance to 
related or inter-related companies

Therefore, the reason for, and effect of, special resolution number 3 is to 
permit the company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 
(within the meaning attributed to that term in section 45 of the 
Companies Act) to the entities referred to in special resolution number 3 
above.

In order for special resolution number 3 to be adopted, the support of 
75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in 
person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

“Resolved that the directors be authorised pursuant inter alia to the 
company's articles of association, until this authority lapses at the next 
annual general meeting of the company, unless it is then renewed at the 
next annual general meeting of the company provided that it shall not 
extend beyond 15 months, to allot and issue ordinary shares for cash 
subject to the Rules and Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”) on the 
following bases:

1. the allotment and issue of the shares must be made to persons 
qualifying as public shareholders and not to related parties as 
defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE;

2. the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a 
class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited 
to such shares or rights that are convertible into a class already in 
issue;

3. the number of shares issued for cash shall not in the aggregate in 
any one financial year exceed 15% (fifteen percent) of the 
company's issued share capital of ordinary shares.  The number of 
ordinary shares which may be issued shall be based on the 
number of ordinary shares in issue at the date of such application 
less any ordinary shares issued during the current financial year, 
provided that any ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to a rights 
issue (announced, irrevocable and fully underwritten) or 
acquisition (concluded up to the date of application including 
announcement of the final terms) may be included as though they 
were shares in issue at the date of application;

4. the maximum discount at which ordinary shares may be issued is 
10% (ten percent) of the weighted average traded price on the JSE 
of those shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the 
price of the issue is agreed between the company and the party 
subscribing for the shares;

5. after the company has issued shares for cash which represent, on 
a cumulative basis within a financial year, 5% (five percent) or 
more of the number of shares in issue prior to that issue, the 
company shall publish an announcement containing full details of 
the issue, (including the number of shares issued, the average 
discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares over 
the 30 days prior to the date that the price of the issue is 
determined and the effect of the issue on net asset value per 
share, net tangible asset value per share, earnings per share, 
headline earnings per share, and if applicable diluted earnings per 
share and diluted headline earnings per share), or any other 
announcements that may be required in such regard in terms of 
the JSE Listings Requirements which may be applicable from time 
to time”.

In terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE a 75% (seventy-five 
percent) majority of the votes cast by shareholders present or 
represented by proxy at the general meeting must be cast in favour of 
Ordinary Resolution Number 1 for it to be approved.

“Resolved that the authorised and unissued ordinary share capital of the 
company be and is hereby placed under the control of the directors of the 
company which directors are, subject to the rules and regulations of the 
JSE Limited and the provisions of the Companies Act of 2008, as 
amended, authorised to allot and issue any of such shares at such time 
or times, to such person or persons, company or companies and upon 
such terms and conditions as they may determine, such authority to 
remain in force until the next annual general meeting of the company.”

Ordinary resolution number 1: Issue of shares for cash

Ordinary resolution number 2: Unissued ordinary 
shares
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Ordinary resolution number 3: Re-election of
E.R. Salkow as a director of the company

Ordinary resolution number 4: Re-election of
M.F. Levitt as a director of the company

Ordinary resolution number 5: Re-election of
R.H. Berkman as a director of the company

Ordinary resolution number 6: Re-election of 
O.D. Fortuin as a director of the company

Ordinary resolution number 7:  Re-appointment of the 
members of the audit and risk committee

Ordinary resolution number 8: Ratification of fees paid 
to non-executive directors: 2010/1011

Ordinary resolution number 9: Re-appointment of 
auditors

Ordinary resolution number 10: Signature of 
documentation

“Resolved that ER Salkow be re-elected as a director of the company”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out in the annual report of which this notice 
forms part.

“Resolved that M.F. Levitt be re-elected as a director of the company”
A brief curriculum vitae is set out in the annual report of which this notice 
forms part.

“Resolved that R.H. Berkman be re-elected as a director of the 
company”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out in the annual report of which this notice 
forms part.

“Resolved that O.D. Fortuin be re-elected as a director of the company”

A brief curriculum vitae is set out in the annual report of which this notice 
forms part.

“Resolved that the following directors be re-appointed as members of 
the audit and risk committee:
� MS Mazwi (Chairman);
� OD Fortuin; and
� MR Goodford.”

“Resolved that the fees paid to the non-executive directors for the 
2010/2011 financial year, as set out on page 17 of the annual report of 
which this notice forms part, be and are hereby ratified and confirmed.”

“Resolved that PKF (Jhb) Inc be re-appointed as auditors of the 
company.”

“Resolved that any director or the company secretary of the company be 
and is hereby authorised to sign all such documentation and do all such 
things as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of 
Special Resolution numbers 1, 2 and 3 and Ordinary Resolution 
numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 which are passed by the members in 
accordance with and subject to the terms thereof.

Statement in terms of section 62(3)(e) of the Companies Act
Members holding certificated shares and members holding shares in 
dematerialised form in “own name”:

� may attend and vote at the annual general meeting; alternatively
� may appoint an individual as a proxy (who need not also be a 

member of the company) to attend, participate in and speak and 
vote in your place at the annual general meeting by completing the 
attached form of proxy and returning it to the registered office of 
the company or to the transfer secretaries, by no later than 48 
hours prior to the meeting. Alternatively, the form of proxy may be 
handed to the chairman of the annual general meeting at the 
annual general meeting at any time prior to the commencement of 
the annual general meeting. Please note that your proxy may 
delegate his/her authority to act on your behalf to another person, 

 

subject to the restrictions set out in the attached form of proxy. 
Please also note that the attached form of proxy must be delivered 
to the registered office of the company or to the transfer 
secretaries or handed to the chairman of the annual general 
meeting, before your proxy may exercise any of your rights as a 
member of the company at the annual general meeting.

Please note that any member of the company that is a company may 
authorise any person to act as its representative at the annual general 
meeting.
Please also note that section 63(1) of the Companies Act requires that 
persons wishing to participate in the annual general meeting (including 
the aforementioned representative) must provide satisfactory 
identification before they may so participate.

Please note that if you are the owner of dematerialised shares held 
through a CSDP or broker (or their nominee) and are not registered as an 
“own name” dematerialised shareholder then you are not a registered 
shareholder of the company, but your CSDP or broker (or their nominee) 
would be.

Accordingly, in these circumstances, subject to the mandate between 
yourself and your CSDP or broker as the case may be:

� if you wish to attend the annual general meeting you must contact 
your CSDP or broker, and obtain the relevant letter of 
representation from it; alternatively

� if you are unable to attend the annual general meeting but wish to 
be represented at the annual general meeting, you must contact 
your CSDP or broker, and furnish it with your voting instructions in 
respect of the annual general meeting and/or request it to appoint 
a proxy. You must not complete the attached form of proxy. The 
instructions must be provided in accordance with the mandate 
between yourself and your CSDP or broker, within the time period 
required by your CSDP or broker.

CSDP's, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be, recorded in the 
company's sub-register as holders of dematerialised shares should, 
when authorised in terms of their mandate or instructed to do so by the 
owner on behalf of whom they hold dematerialised shares, vote by either 
appointing a duly authorised representative to attend and vote at the 
annual general meeting or by completing the attached form of proxy in 
accordance with the instructions thereon and returning it to the 
registered office of the company or to the transfer secretaries, by no later 
than 48 hours prior to the meeting. Alternatively, the form of proxy may be 
handed to the chairman of the annual general meeting at the annual 
general meeting at any time prior to the commencement of the annual 
general meeting.

In order to more effectively record the votes and give effect to the 
intentions of members, voting on all resolutions will be conducted by way 
of a poll.

By order of the board

Probity Business Services (Pty) Limited
Company Secretary
10 October 2011

Registered address Transfer Secretaries
94 Eloff Street Ext Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd
Village Deep 5th Floor
Johannesburg 11 Diagonal Street
2001 Johannesburg 2001

(P.O. Box 4844, Johannesburg 2000)

 

Notice to owners of dematerialised shares

Voting at the annual general meeting
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For use by the holders of the company's certificated ordinary shares (“certified shareholders”) and/or dematerialised ordinary shares held through a 
Central Securities Depository Participant (CSDP) or broker who have selected “own name” registration (“own-name dematerialised shareholders”) at 
the annual general meeting of the company to be held on Wednesday, 23 November 2011 at 94 Eloff Street Ext, Village Deep, Johannesburg at 
12:00pm, or at any adjournment thereof if required.  Additional forms of proxy are available from the transfer secretaries of the company. 

Not for use by holders of the company's dematerialised ordinary shares who have not selected “own-name” registration.  Such shareholders must 
contact their CSDP or broker timeously if they wish to attend and vote at the annual general meeting and request that they be issued with the necessary 
authorisation to do so or provide the CSDP or broker timeously with their voting instructions should they not wish to attend the annual general meeting in 
order for the CSDP or broker to vote in accordance with their instructions at the annual general meeting.

I/We (Name in block letters)

of (Address)

Being the registered holder of ordinary shares in the capital of the company hereby appoint

1. or failing him

2. or failing him

3. the chairperson of the meeting

as my/our proxy to act for me/us on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting, or any adjournment thereof, which will be held for the purpose of 
considering and, if deemed fit, passing with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions as detailed in the Notice of Annual General 
Meeting, and to vote for and/or against such resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s), in 
accordance with the following instructions:

ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2007/007084/06) ISIN: ZAE000103081

JSE CODE: ELI

To pass special resolutions:

1. To grant authority to effect share repurchases
2. To approve fees payable to non-executive directors: 2011/2012
3. To approve the provision of financial assistance to group inter-

related companies

To pass ordinary resolutions:

1. To provide authority to issue shares for cash
2. To place the unissued shares under the control of the directors
3. To re-elect E.R. Salkow as a director of the company
4. To re-elect M.F. Levitt as a director of the company
5. To re-elect R.H. Berkman as a director of the company
6. To re-elect O.D. Fortuin as a director of the company
7. To re-appoint members of the audit and risk committee
8. To ratify the fees paid to non-executive directors: 2010/1011
9. To re-appoint PKF (Jhb) Inc as auditors of the company 
10. To authorise the signature of documentation

In favour of Against

NUMBER OF VOTES

Abstain

Signed this day of                                      2011

Signature Assisted by

 (if applicable)

(Indicated instructions to proxy in the spaces provided above.) Unless otherwise instructed, my proxy may vote as he thinks fit.
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FORM OF PROXY continued for the year ended 30 April 2011

Notes:
1. Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (none of whom need be a shareholder of the 

company) to attend, speak and vote in place of that shareholder at the annual general meeting
2. Shareholder(s) that are certificated or own-name dematerialised shareholders may insert the name of a 

proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member's choice in the space/s provided, with or without 
deleting “the chairperson of the meeting”, but any such deletion must be initialled by the shareholders (s). 
The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the general meeting will be 
entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow. If no proxy is named on a lodged form of 
proxy the chairperson shall be deemed to be appointed as the proxy.

3. A shareholder's instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes 
exercisable by the shareholder in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will be 
deemed to authorise the proxy, in the case of any proxy other than the chairperson, to vote or abstain from 
voting as deemed fit and in the case of the chairperson to vote in favour of the resolution.

4. A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholder, but the total 
of the votes cast or abstained may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable in respect of the shares held 
by the shareholder.

5. Forms of proxy must be lodged at or posted to Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd, 5th Floor, 11 
Diagonal Street, Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000) to be received not less than 48 
hours prior to the meeting.

6. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the 
general meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms 
hereof, should such shareholder wish to do so. Where there are joint holders of shares, the vote of the first 
joint holder who tenders a vote, as determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of 
members, will be accepted.

7. The chairperson of the general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or 
received otherwise than in accordance with these notes, provided that, in respect of acceptances, the 
chairperson is satisfied as to the manner in which the shareholder concerned wishes to vote.

8. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative 
capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company or the transfer 
secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the general meeting.

9. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.
10. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal 

capacity are produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries.
11. Where there are joint holders of any shares, only that holder whose name appears first in the register in 

respect of such shares need sign this form of proxy.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION for the year ended 30 April 2011

Registered office 

94 Eloff Street Ext
Village Deep
Johannesburg, 2001

PO Box 57076
Springfield, 2137

Telephone: 011 490 3800
Fax: 011 493 2392
Email: holdings@ellies.co.za

www.elliesholdings.com
www.ellies.co.za

Sponsor, corporate advisor and legal advisor

Java Capital (Pty) Ltd
(Company registration number: 2002/031862/07)
(A Sponsor and DA registered with the JSE Limited)
2nd Floor, 2 Arnold Road, Rosebank, 2196.

PO Box 2087, Parklands, 2121

Auditors

PKF (Jhb) Inc
(Company registration number 1994/001166/21)
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
42 Wierda Road West,
Wierda Valley, 2196

Private Bag X10046, Sandton, 2146

Directors

ER Salkow (Chairman)
WMG Samson (CEO)
MF Levitt (CFO)
RH Berkman
AC Brooking
OD Fortuin
MR Goodford
MS Mazwi
RE Otto

Company secretary
 
Probity Business Services (Pty) Ltd
(Company registration number 2000/002046/07)
3rd Floor, The Mall Offices, 11 Cradock Avenue,
Rosebank, 2196

PO Box 85392, Emmarentia, 2029

Transfer secretaries 

Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd
(Company registration number 2000/007239/07)
5th Floor, 11 Diagonal Street, Johannesburg, 2001

PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000

Commercial Bankers

The Standard Bank of SA Ltd
(Company registration number: 1962/000738/06)
Standard Bank Centre, 5 Simmonds Street,
Johannesburg, 2001

PO Box 7725, Johannesburg, 2000

ELLIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Company registration number: 2007/007084/06)
JSE Code: ELI
ISIN: ZAE000103081
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